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Honorable Leslie Thompson, Mayor 
and Members of the Boaid of Aldermen 
Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, I^uisiana 

We are engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the Town of Jonesboro as of 
for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents These financial statements aie the 
responsibility of the Town's management 

Because of inadequacies m the Town's accounting records, we were unable to foim an 
opinion regaiding the amounts recorded as opening balances for liabilities and fixed assets 
and the income and expense or expenditure allocation between depaitments and funds 

Because of the scope limitation described above we are unable to express, and do not 
express an opmion on the Town's financial statements as listed m the table of contents 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
May 18, 2012 on oui consideration of the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana's internal contiol 
over financial lepoiluig and oui test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
legulations. contacts and grant agreements and other matters The purpose of that lepoit is 
to describe the scope of oui testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide and opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting oi on compliance That lepoit is an integiat part of an 
audit perfoimed in accoidance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in 
conjunction with this report in consideiing the results of oui audit 

JonaldJ Walkei III, CPA, LLC 

Lake Charles, Louisiana 
May 18,2012 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

June 30, 2011 

As management of the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana, we offer the readers of the Town's financial 
statements this nairative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Jonesboro as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2011 We encourage readers to considei the information presented 
here in conjunction with the Town's basic financial statements and supplementary infoimation 
piovided in this repoit in assessing the efficiency and effectiveness of oui stewardship of public 
resources 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the new reporting model 
adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) m their Statement No 34 Basic 
Financial Statements- and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments 
issued June 1999 Certain comparative information between the current year and the piior year is 
required to be presented in the MD&A 

Financial Highhghts 

Our financial statements provide these insights into the results of this year's operations 

Governmental activities reported an increase in net assets of $334,155 and business-type activities 
reported an increase of $27,847 The governmental activities revenue increased mainly due to Capital 
Grants and Contributions Governmental expenditures increased in expenditures. Public Safety and 
Public Works 

Governmental activities revenue increased mainly due to Capital Grants 

Totaling spending for our governmental activities was $2,702,802 A list of the Town's property 
and sales taxes were used to support the net cost (after deducting restricted grants and fees charged to 
users) of these three areas general government of $250,703, public safety of $1,102,172, the public 
works department of $129,531 and $3,659 in interest expense 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The Town's annual report consists of a series of financial statements that show information for the 
Town as a whole, and its funds The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities provides 
information about the activities of the Town as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Town's 
finances For our goveinmental activities, the fund financial statements tell how we financed our 
services in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending Fund statements also may give 
you some insights into the Town's overall financial health Fund financial statements also report the 
Town's operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements by piovidmg 
information about the Town's most significant funds the General Fund, Fire Department Ad Valorem 
Tax, Street Ad Valorem Tax, Street Sales Tax, and the Utility Enteipnse Fund 

This Management Discussion and Analysis document introduces the Town of Jonesboro's financial 
statements The Town's basic financial statements include three components (I) government wide 
financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements The basic 
financial statements include two kinds of financial statements that present different views of the Town 
the Goveinnient-Wide Financial Statements and the Fund Financial Statements. These financial 
statements also include the Notes to the Financial Statements that explain some of the information m 
the financial statements and provide additional detail This report also contains additional required 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

June 30, 2011 

supplementary information- a budgetaiy schedule- in addition to the basic financial statements These 
components are described below 

Government-'Widc financial statements 

The goveinment-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 
the Town of Jonesboro's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business The government-
wide financial statements include two statements 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town of Jonesboro's assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets Overtime, increases or 
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
Town of Jonesboro is improving or deteriorating 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town of Jonesboro's net 
assets changed during the most recent fiscal year All changes in net assets are reported as soon 
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of timing of related cash 
flows Revenues and expenses are reported in this statement foi some items that will only result 
in cash flows in future fiscal periods 

The Government-Wide financial statements can be found immediately following this discussion and 
analysis 

Fund financial statements 

A fund IS a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives The Town of Jonesboro, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements The Town of Jonesboro has one governmental fund 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities m the government-wide financial statements Howevei, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year Such information may be useful in evaluating a 
government's near-term financing requirements 

Because the focus of govemmcntal funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useflil to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similai 
information presented foi governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing 
decisions Both the goveinmental fund balance sheet and goveinmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities 

The governmental funds financial statements can be found immediately following the government-
wide financial statements 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

June 30,2011 

Notes to the financial statements 

The notes provided additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided 
in the govcinment-wide and fund financial statements The notes to the financial statements can be 
found immediately following the funds financial statements 

Olhcr Infoimation 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information The Town of Jonesboro adopts an annual budget for the general 
fund A budgetaiy compaiison statement is provided for the general fund to demonstrate budgetaiy 
compliance 

Oui auditor has provided no assurance in the independent auditors' repoit, located immediately 
preceding this Management's Discussion and Analysis, that the Basic Financial Statements are fairly 
stated Vaiying degrees of assurance are being provided by the auditor regarding the Required 
Supplemental Information, and the Supplemental information identified above A usei of this report 
should read the independent auditors' report carefi.illy to ascertain the level of assurance being 
provided for each of the other parts of this report 

Govei nment-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the government's financial 
position The Town's net assets totaled $8,342,394 at June 30, 2011 

The portion of the Town's net assets $8,342,394 (87%) reflect its investment in capital assets (eg 
land, buildings, improvements and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that 
IS still outstanding compared to $6,137,177 (83%) as of June 30, 2010 The Town uses these capital 
assets to provide services to the citizen of the Town, consequently, these assets are not available for 
future spending 

An additional portion of the Town's net assets, $71,940 (1%) represents resources that are subject to 
external restiiction on how they may be used The remaining portion of the Town's net assets, 
$400,094 (5%) and $533,863 (100%) as of June 30, 2010 and 2011, respectively, is unrestricted and 
may be used to meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors at the discretion of the 
mayor and aldermen $553,863 (100%) of the unrestricted net assets of the Town consists of cash, 
demand deposits, and certificates of deposit compared to $400,094 (100%) for the prior year 
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Town of Jonesboio 

Management 's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 
June 30, 2011 

ASSETS 

Oibh and cash cquivnlcnls 

Restricted cnsii- deposits 

Taxes recciv«b(c 

Other receivables prepnid & inventory 

June 30. 2011 June 30. 2010 

$ 1,257,361 $ 1,009,797 

39,125 112,903 

72,724 149.953 

734,547 636,693 

Capitol assets (nel of accumulated deprccialion) 10.214.560 9.202 628 

TOTAL ASSETS S I211K.3I7 _£J_LULL.97-4 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and other payables 

Payable from restricted assets- meter deposits 

Long-lcrm liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets, nel of related dchi 

Restricted for specific purposes 

Unrestricted 

876,050 

120,438 

3,031,163 

4.089,939 

7,219,876 

568,655 

439.847 

526,386 

111,935 

3.093.380 

3,731,70) 

6,137,177 

843,002 

400.094 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 8.228.37î  .1_1.1&Q.223 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 

OUI analysis of the Town as a whole begins with the goveinment-wide financial statements One of 
the most important questions asked about the Town's finances is, "Is the Town as a whole better off or 
worse off as a result of the year's activities'?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities, which appear first in the Town's financial statements, report infoimation about the Town as 
a whole and its activities in a way that helps answer this question We prepare these statements to 
include all assets and liabilities, using the accrual basts of accounting, which is similar to the 
accounting used by most piivate sector companies All of the current year's revenues and expenses 
are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid 

These two statements report the Town's net assets - The difference between assets and liabilities, as 
reported in the Statement of Net Assets as one way to measure the Town's financial health, or 

financial position Over time, mc} eases or decieases in the Town's net assets- as reported in the 
Statement of Activities are one indicator of whether \\s financial health is improving oi deteriorating 
The relationship between revenues and expenses is the Town's operating results Howevei, the 
Town's goal is to provide services to our citizens, not to genet ate profits as commeicial entities do 
One must considei other nonfinancial factors, such as the quality of police and fire protection, the 
conditions of the Town's roads, and the quality of water, sewer and sanitation systems to assess the 
oveiall health of the Town 

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the Town into two kinds of 
activities 

Governmental Activities - Most of the Town's basic services are reported here, including the 
police, fire, street and general admmisliation Pioperty taxes, fianchise fees^ licenses and f&es, 
fines and forfeitures, and state and fedeial giants finance most of these activities 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

June 30, 2011 

Business-type Activities - The Town chaiges a fee to customers to help it covei all or most of 
certain services it provides The Town's watei, sewei and sanitation systems are reported here 

Reporting The Town's Most Significant Funds 

The Town's fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds-
not the Town as a whole Some funds are required to be established by State law to show that it is 
meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money The Town's two kinds 
of funds- goveinmental and propiietary- use different accounting approaches 

Governmental funds Governmental fund reporting focuses on showing how money flows into 
and out of funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending They are 
reported using and accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures 
cash and all ot\\er financial assets that can readily be converted to cash The governmental fund 
statements piovide a detailed short-term view of the Town's operations and the services it 
provides Governmental fund information helps you determine whethei there are more or fewer 
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Town's programs We 
describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the 
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in the 
reconciliations 

Proprietary funds - When die Town charges customers for the services it provides, these 
services are generally reported in proprietary funds Proprietary funds are reported in the same 
way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Asset and the Statement of Activities 
In fact, the Town's utility enterprise fund (a component of proprietary funds) are the same as 
business-type activities we report in the government-wide financial statements but provide more 
detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for ptoprietary funds 

The Town As A Whole 

Our analysis below focuses on the net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets (Table 2) of the 
Town's governmental and business-type activities 



Town of Jonesboro 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

June 30,2011 

Current and other assets 

Restricted assets 

Capital assets 

Total assets 

.Iiinc 

Governmental Activities 

m i 
$ 13fi5.3ri5 

-

2.598.472 

3,963,837 

2 m 
S 1,287,57! 

-

1.702.202 

2.989.773 

Tnblc 1 

Net Assets 

30.2010 and 2011 

Busincs^-tYPC AcMvities 

201) 

$ 699,267 

39.125 

7,616.088 

8.354,480 

2010 

$ 508.872 

112.903 

7,500.426 

8.122.201 

Tolnl 

2011 

J 2.095.321 

39.125 

10,214.560 

12.318.317 

2010 

S 1.796.443 

112,903 

9.?02.628 

11,111,974 

Current and other liabilities 

Liabilities payable from reslrictcd 

404.924 267.130 533.414 259.256 938.338 526.386 

assets 

Long-temt liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net assets 

Invested in capital assets, net of 

related debt 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total net n.sscis 

-
106.819 

511.743 

2.524.642 

568,655 

358.797 

« 3.452.094 

-
90.807 

357.937 

1,636,369 

843.002 

152.4W 

t 2631.836 

120.438 

2.924.344 

3 578.196 

4,695,234 

-
8t.0?0 

111,935 

3.002.573 

3.373.764 

4,500,803 

-
247.629 

X 4.748.437 

120,438 

3.031.163 

4.089.939 

7,219.876 

568,655 

439.847 

_s&j2&.m 

111,935 

3.093.380 

3.731.701 

6,137.177 

843.002 

400.094 

."£7 380 773 

Net assets of the Town's governmental activities increased by 31% $3,452,094 compared to 
$2,631,836 in 2010) Unrestricted net assets- the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to 
day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal 
requirements was a $358,797 at the end of this yeai 

The net assets of our business-type activities increased by \% ($4,776,284 compared to $4,748,437 in 
2010) 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

June 30, 2011 

Tabic 2 

Changes in Nel Assets 

June 30,2011 and 2010 

Revenues 

Program revenues 

Charges for services 
Capital grants and 
conlribulions 

Governmental Aclivilies 

2011 2Qm 

$ 185.989 

849,452 

S4IS.6I5 

808.886 

Biisniessrtype Aetivitics 

2011 2010 

S97I,194 

140.177 

Total 

2011 2010 

$1,074,855 SI.157.183 $1,490,470 

584.094 989,629 1.392.980 

General revenues 

Property taxes 366,547 

Sales tax 1,552,869 

Franchise tax 111^52 

Intergovernmental 124,959 

Other Taxes 5.308 

Licenses and permits 113.443 

Earnings on inveslments 4,268 

Miscellaneous 141.593 
Total 
Revenues 3,455,780 

280.047 

.698,616 

105.695 

91,380 

7.524 

109.468 

8,247 

118.955 

3.644.433 

1.9S0 6,043 

1.664.992 

366,547 

1,552,869 

1II3S2 

124,959 

5,308 

113 443 

6.248 

141.593 

4.569,131 

280.047 

1.698.616 

105,695 

91.380 

7.524 

109,468 

14.290 

118.955 

5.309.425 

Functions/Program 
Expenses 

Governmental Activities 

General government 

Public safety 

Public works 

Interest expense 

Business-type Activities 

Utility Enterprise 
Total runciions/Program 
Expenses 
Increase (decrease) tn net 
assets 

603.329 

1.085.312 

943,222 

3,659 

638.180 

1,284,084 

1.314.554 

4.727 

2.635.522 

820.258 

3.241.545 

402.88S 

1.286.715 

1.286.715 

(173.364) 

1.IWQ7 

1.159.307 

505.685 

603,329 

1.085,312 

943,222 

3,659 

1.286.715 

3.922.237 

646,894 

638.180 

1.284.084 

1,314,554 

4.727 

1-159.307 

4.400.852 

908.573 

Transtcrs 

Ctiangc in nel assets 

Net assets - beginning 

Net assets - ending 

820.258 

2.63_L836 

402,888 

2.228.948 

?Q1.21 

27,847 

4.748.437 

505,685 

4.242.752 

201.211 : 

848.105 908.573 

7.380.273 6.471.700 

!LJ45.2.Q94 $ 2631.816 SA.-mj2M $ 4.748.437 0.22837J; 3LJLa80.27i 

Governmental Activities 

The cost of all governmental activities this yeai was $2,702,802, as shown in the Statement of 
Activities, the amount that our taxpayeis ultimately financed for these activities through town taxes 
was only $1,486,065 because some of the cost was paid by those who duectly benefited fiom the 
piogiams or by othei governments and oiganizations that subsidized certain piogiams with grants and 
contnbutions 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Management's Discussion and Analysts (MDc&A) 

June 30,2011 

Table presents the cost of each of the Town's governmental activities as well as each piogiam's net 
cost (total cost less levenues generated by the activities) The net cost shows the financial burden that 
was placed on the Town's taxpayeis by each of these functions 

Table 3 

Governmental Activities 

For the Yearii Ended June 30, 2011 mid 2010 

Govcrnincntal Activities 

General government 

Public safety 

Pubhc works 

Interest expense 
Total Functions/Programs 
Expenses 

lotal Cost of Services 

2011 

$ 603,329 

1.085.312 

943,222 

3.659 

2010 

S 638,180 

1.284,084 

J.314,554 

4.727 

Net Cost of Services 

2011 

$ 250,703 

1,102,172 

129,531 

3.659 

.i; 1.486 065 

2010 

$ 255,864 

1.250,785 

505,668 

4,727 

But mess-type Activities 

Revenues of the Town's business-type activities (see Table 2) decreased by 33% $1,113,351 
compared to $1,664,992 in 2010 and expenses increased by 11% The factors driving these lesults 
include monies from Capital Grants and Contnbutions and the expenses increased due to increase to 
Utility Funds 

The Town's Funds 

As the Town completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$927,452 which is a decrease of $96,414 in fund balance from last yeai 

Budgetary Highlights 

Formal budgetaiy integration is employed as a management control device during the fiscal yeai The 
budget policy of the Town complies with state law, as amended, and as set forth in Louisiana Revised 
statues Title 39, Chapter 9, Louisiana Local Government Budget Act (LSA - R S 39 1301 et seq ) 
The Town amended the original budget primarily to accommodate foi mcieased expenditures 

The Town made amendments to all of its budgets once duiing the year with numeious unfavorable 
variances exceeding 5% 

The most significant vaiiances were over budgeted revenues in the geneial hind Ad valoiem taxes 
with budgeted revenues of $275,900 exceeded actual revenues of $121,677 (56%) shortfall, and 
budgeted levenues foi general sales and use taxes of $1,740,000 exceeded actual tevenues of $807,288 
(54%) shortfall 

11 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

June 30, 2011 

Economic Factors and Next Yeai's Budget 

The City prepaied the General Fund's budgets for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 expecting small 
changes over 2011 Budgeted revenues and other financing sources foi the year ending June 30, 2012 
aie $3,049,250 compared to final amended budgeted expenditures and othei financial souices of 
$2,965,667 for the year ended June 30, 2011 Likewise, budgeted expenditures and other financial 
uses of the General Fund were increased from the final amended budgeted amount of $2,965,667 foi 
the fiscal year ended June 30,2011 to $3,049,250 for the fiscal yeai ending June 30,2012 

Our elected and appointed officials and citizens consider many factore when setting the Town's budget 
and tax rates. One of the most important factors affecting the budget is our fianchise, ad valorem, 
sales and other assorted tax collections Approximately 39% of total revenues in the general fund are 
franchise, sales and ad valorem tax 

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, the following factors weie consideied when the budget was 
piepared. 

• General revenues and police fines will remain consistent with the prior year 
• The Town does not expect to receive significant grant monies 
• Other expenditures are expected to remain steady with the prior year 

Capital Assets 

Capital Assets at hinQ 30 y2Q\] and 2010, the Town had invested in the following capital assets 

Capital Assets Not Depreciated 

Land 

Construction in progress 
Total Non-depreciated Assets 

Depreciable Capital Assets 
Land Improvements 

Buildings & Building Improvements 

Furniture and equipment 

Vehicles 

Water System 

Sewer System 

Total Depreciated Assets 

Total Capital Assets 

Governmental Activities 

2011 

$ 148,177 

743.744 

891,921 

1,025,540 

287,533 

213,508 

179.970 

-
_ 

1,706,551 

$2,598,472 

2010 

$ 148,177 

259,810 
407.987 

550.334 

325,755 

250,706 

167.420 

-
_ 

1,294.215 

S 1.707.202 

Business 

2011 

S 

674.800 

674,800 

-
75.197 

678,248 

-
3.805,310 

2.401.187 

6,959,942 

% 7.634.742 

•tvpe Activities 

2010 

$ 
254.?07 

254,907 

-
78.330 

760.971 

-
3.916,327 

2.489.891 

7.245.519 

sj.m.m 

Additional information on capital assets can be found in Note 5 of the Notes to the Basic Financial 
Statements 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

June 30,2011 

Debt Administration 

Utility revenue bonds in the amount of $2,300,000 wcic issued by the USDA and arc being repaid 
over a forty-year peiiod The remaining bond payable for the Utility Revenue Bonds at June 30, 2011 
was $2,268,167 The funds were used to finance the cost of the constiuction of extensions, 
impiovements, and additions to the existing waterworks system of the Town Additional infoimation 
on long-term debt can be found in Note 8 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Request for Information 

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and investors and creditor with a 
general overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town's accountability for the money it 
receives If you have questions about this report or wish to request additional financial infoimation, 
contact Mayor Leslie Thompson, at the Town of Jonesboro, PO Box 610, Jonesboro Louisiana 
71251, telephone number (318) 259-2385 
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TOWN O F J O N E S B O R O 

Statement of Net Assets 

For the Year Ended June 30 ,2011 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Taxes receivable 
Receivables, net 
Othcr'rcccivablcs, prcpaids and inventory 
Accounts r^eivable - Franchise 
Restricted assets - deposits 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total Assets 

$ 661,430 
24.120 
72,724 

200,134 
406,957 

-
-

2.598.472 

3,963,837 

J 537.471 
34,340 

-
77.066 
50.390 

-
39,125 

7.616,088 

8,354.480 

$ 1,198,901 
58.460 
72.724 

277.200 
457.347 

-
39,125 

10.214.560 

12.318,317 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other payables 
Interest payable 
Payable from restricted assets - meter deposits 
Other payables 
Long-term liabilities 

Portion due within one year 
Portion due after one year 

Total Liabilities 

404.924 103.067 507.991 

-

-

53,919 
52,900 

511,743 

120.438 
430.347 

120.473 
2.803.871 

3,578,196 

120.438 
430.347 

174,392 
2.856,771 

4.089,939 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for 

Public Safety- Tire 
Street Maintenance 
Street Maintenance - Ad Valorem 

Unrestricted 

2.524.642 

24.939 
471,776 
71,940 

358.797 

4,695.234 

81.050 

7.219.876 

24,939 
471,776 

71,940 
439,847 

Total Net Assets 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

3,452.094 

$ 3.963.837 $ 8,354,480 

8.228.378 

$ 12.318.317 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
14 



g < 
CO 

3P — m t r t 
O^ 
M 

^̂  

O N 

m 
« (*\ 

«a o 
%o' oo 

«n M M rn ^ ^ f ^ o*_ »n <N 
\ o ' —' M " irt r n *o • ^ r-" ^ ' 
\ 0 _> m ^ rS (N o 
f»i — >o — — r* 

5 5 
r-

«̂ 
fH 

o 
n 

„_ 
o> 
M 
o 
f s 

l " ^ 

t^ 
o 
v> M 

M 

M — ON 
r« m <o 

-.n*. fS o» m 
O <N '— 

• N . ^ 

S _ ^ 

^ \o 
o 
»o 
eo 
^̂  

«» 

d ON oo m oo oi r -
•/> NO o ^ NO ŵ  r -
m_ oo f̂^ ^ , <^ o \ **\ 
—" oT >o* ro ^ ^" p*" 

\o 

s ^ r ^ 
NO 

M 

^ 
s I N 
• O 
• ^ . 

»̂  
M 

I 

O -o a 
— 5 •" a e) h. 

8 » 
a u 

r-
r-

§ 

o 
r-i 
so 
£ 
ON 

*̂  

NO O N 

NO NO 

• ^ 

O i 

p -
O i 

O N 

r -
_̂ oe 1*1 

*̂ . 
«̂  

ON — m 
M n OO 
n. «. o*. r ^ NO o o 

o — r-NO ^ ^ O N 

^ M 

gi^ 

t n 
NO 

rW 

O I 
o 
«« O I 
o 
r -
r s 
M 

— f̂  NO' 
OO 

^ 

12 
O^ 
NO 
OO 

2 

p * 

I r t 

oC 
oo 0 ^ 

m 
W 

1 1 
1 1 

£3 

> 
s l 

II 
E ^ 
c 
a. 

E 
E 

c o u 

,»J 3 a 2 
O pL. (1. .S 

.1. »* ^ 

CQ 



o o xt Tt- I .— r ' 
r o OI CNl m - * ^ 
•̂ ^ —̂  r-^ ^ sq_ r*̂  
—'" •*" CNT O " vi" ON 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets 

For (he Year Ended June 30,2011 

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 927.452 

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, furniture and equipment and infrastructure) 
purchased or constructed is reported as an expenditure m governmental funds 
The Statement of Net Assets includes those capital assets amoung the assets of 
the town as a whole The cost of those capital assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives (as depreciation expense) to the various programs reported 
as governmental activities in the Statement of Activities Because depreciation 
expense does not affect financial resources, it is not reported in governmental 
funds 

Costs of Capital assets 5,798,592 

Depreciation expense to date (3.170,621) 

2,627.971 

Long -term liabilities applicable to the Town's governmental activities arc not due and 

payable m the current penod and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities 

All liablilities • both current and long term - are reported in the Statement of Net 

Assets 

Balance at June 30,2011 are 

Long-term Liabilities 

Capital lease payable (73.830) 

Compensated absences payable (29,499) 

Net increase (decrease) tn cash and cash equivalents 

(103.329) 

Net Assets $ 3.452,094 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ (96,414) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because 

Capital outlays are reported in governmetat funds as expenditures However, in the Statement of 
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation 
expense This is the amount by whick capital outlays exceeds depreciation expense in the 
period 

Capital outlay 986,799 

Depreciation expense (86,222) 

900,577 

Repayment of capital leases is an expenditure m the govemmenlal funds, but the repayment 

reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets 20,620 

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses-compensated absences (vacations, 

and sick leave) - are measured by the amounts during the year In the governmental 

funds, however, expenditures for these items arc measured by the amount of financial 

resources used (essentially, the amounts acctually paid) This year, vacation and sick time 

earned exceeded the amounts used by $4,525 (4,525) 

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 820,258 

Tlie notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUNDS 

Statement of Net Assets 
June 30,2011 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 571,811 
Receivables, net 77,066 
Interfund receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 50,390 

Restricted assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 4,785 
Investments 34,340 

Total current assets 738,392 

Non current assets 

Capital assets, net of depreciation 7,616,088 

Total Assets 8,354,480 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable and other payables 103,067 
Interfund payable 430,347 
Compensated absences payable 3,490 
Capitalized lease obligation 93,261 
Bonds payable 23,722 

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets 

Tenant security deposits 120,438 

Total current liabilities 774,325 

Non-current liabilities 

Capitalized lease obligation 559,426 

Bonds payable 2,244,445 

Total non-current liabilities 2,803,871 

Total Liabilities 3,578,196 NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,695,234 
Assigned fund balance 81,050 

Total Net Assets $ 4,776,284 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUNDS 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and changes in Fund Net Assets 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Water sales 
Sewer fees 
Other services 

$ 684,297 
269.821 

17,076 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personnel services 
Supplies 

Utilities 

Rcparis and maintanance 
Other supplies and charges 

Bad debt reserve 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

971.194 

340,352 

12.150 

116,079 

206,214 

164,405 

344.891 

1,184,091 

(212.897) 

NON - OPERATING REVENUES fEXPENSES) 
Interest mcome 
State and federal grants 
Interest expense 

1.980 
140,177 

(102.624) 

Total non - operating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before transfers 

39.533 

(173,364) 

TRANSFERS IN/OUT 
Transfers 201,211 

Total transfers in (out) 

Changes in Net Assets 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING 

NET ASSETS-ENDING 

201,211 

27.847 

4,748,437 

$ 4.776,284 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
21 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUNDS 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended June 30,2011 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Payments to employees for services 

Net cash provided (used) for operating activities 

S 894.128 
(392,781) 
(336,862) 
164,485 

CASH FLOW (USES) FROM NONCAPITAL riNANClNG ACTIVITIES 
InterFiind payable 
Transfers in 

Net cash provided (used) for noncapital financing activites 

430,347 
201,211 
631,558 

CASH FLOW (USES) FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition of capital assets 
Payments on capital leases 
Payments on bonds 
Grant receipts 
Interest expense 

Net cash provided (used) for capital and realted financing activites 

(479,207) 
(88.402) 
(22.680) 
274,108 

(102,624) 

(418.805) 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES 
Earnings on investments 1.980 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 379.218 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING 

197,378 

576.596 

Cash and cosh equivalents 
Restricted deposits 

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

571.811 
4.785 

576.596 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided (used) for operating activities 

Depreciation 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in inventory 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 
Increase (decrease) in deposits due others 
Increase (decrease) m compensated absences 

(212,897) 

344.891 

279,539 

5,461 

11,941 

(274,664) 

1,176 

8.503 

535 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 164.485 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying financial statements of the Town of Jonesboio have been prepared in conformity 
With accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applies to 
governmental units The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial repotting principles 

Reporting Entity 

The Town of Jonesboro (the "Town") is located in the southwest corner of Jackson Parish Jonesboio 
was incorporated as a village on September 4, 1901, and as a town on May 14, 1903, under provisions 
of the Lawrason Act 

The Town operates under a Mayor-Boaixl of Aldemien form of government The Board of Aldermen 
of the Town of Jonesboro is composed of five aldermen, elected for four year term, who aie 
compensated as shown in this report The Town serves 3,914 citizens by providing police protection, 
fire protection, water/sewer services, sanitation services, street maintenance, and various 
administrative flinctions such as legislation of town ordinances and the enforcement of same The 
Town employs approximately fifty persons to serve the needs of the citizens of the Town of 
Jonesboro 

GASB statement No 14, The Reporting Entity, established ciitena for determining the goveinmental 
reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting entity Under 
provisions of this Statement, the Town is considered a primary government, since it is a special 
puipose government that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally 
independent of other state or local governments As used in GASB Statement No 14 fiscally 
independent means that the Town may, without the approval or consent of another governmental 
entity, determine or modify its own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or chaiges, and issue bonded 
debt This report includes all funds that are controlled by or dependent on the Town's Executive and 
Legislative Branches (The Mayor and Board of Aldermen) 

Funds 

The accounts of the Town are organized and opeiated on the basis of funds A fund is a separate 
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts Government resources ate allocated to and 
accounted foi in individual funds based on the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means 
by which spending activities are controlled The vaiious funds are grouped in the financial statements 
m this leport as follows 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i e, the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the Town*s activities The statement of activities demonstrates 
the degiee to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset by piogram revenues Direct 
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with the specific function oi segment Program 
levenues include (1) charges to customers oi applicants who purchase, use, or duectly benefit From 
goods, sei vices, or piivileges piovided by a given function and (2) giants and contnbutions that 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 1 -Summai7 of Significnnt Accounting Policies (continued) 

are lestricted to meeting the opeiational oi capital requiiements of a particular function Taxes and 
other Items not properly included among program revenues are reported as genera! revenues The 
effect of intcr-fund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial statements 

Separate financial statement are provided for governmental funds Major individual governmental 
funds are reported as separate columns in the financial statements 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for most of government activities, including the collection 
and disbursement of specific or legally restricted monies, the acquisition oi construction of capital 
assets, and the servicing of long-teim debt Governmental funds include 

• General Fund is the operating fund of the Town It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in anothei fund 

• Fire Department Ad Valorem Tax Fund accounts for the proceeds of ad valorem taxes 
restricted to expenditures of the Fire Department 

• Street Department Ad Valorem Tax Fund accounts proceeds of ad valorem taxes to 
expenditures of the Street Department 

• Street Department Sales Tax Fund accounts for proceeds of sales taxes restricted to 
expenditures of the Street Department 

Proprietarv Fund 

The proprietary fund accounts for activities similar to those found in the private sector where the 
determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration The proprietary 
fund differs from a goveinmental fund in that its focus is on income measurement which, together 
with the maintenance of equity, is an important financial indicator The proprietary fund of the Town 
IS the Utility Enterprise Fund, which accounts foi the opeiations of the waterwoiks and sewerage 
systems The intent of the Town for these facilities is (a) that the costs (expenses, including 
depieciation) of providing goods and services to the geneial public on a continuing basis be financed 
or recovered primarily through user charges or (b) that the periodic determination of revenues earned, 
expenses mcuired, and/or net income is appropriate foi capital maintenance, public policy, 
nianagement control, accountability oi other purposes 

Activities accounted for in the Town's propiietary fund follow all applicable GASB pionouncements 
as well as applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued on or before 
November 30, 1989 

24 



Town of Jonesboro 
Notes to the Financial Slatements 

June 30, 2011 

Note 1 - Summni7 of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting. 

Govei nment-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The goveinnient-wide financial statements are repotted using the economic lesouices measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows Taxes are 
recognized as revenues m the year for which they are levied Grants and similar items are recognized 
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirement imposed by the piovider have been met Expenses are 
recorded when liabilities are incurred 

Government fund financial statements are leported using the cuirent financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basts of accounting Revenues aic recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within 
the current period or soon enough thereaftet to pay liabilities of the current period For this puipose, 
the government considers revenues to be available if they aie collected within 60 days of the end of 
the current fiscal period Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under 
accrual accounting 

The statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display information about the reporting 
government as a whole Fiduciary funds arc not included m the GWFS 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities was prepaied using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, 
assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like tiansactions aie recognized when the 
exchange takes place Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from non-
exchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No 33 
"Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions " 

Piogram Revenues 

Program revenues include charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
fiom goods, seivices, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational oi capital requirements of a particular 
function or segment Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are 
reported instead as general revenues 

Allocation of Indirect Expenses 

The Town reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities Direct expenses are 
those that aie clearly identifiable with the function Depreciation expense is specifically identified by 
function and is included in the direct expense of each function Interest on long-term debt is 
considered and indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 1 -Summary of Significnnt Accounting Policies (continued) 

Governmental Funds 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement 
focus Governmental fund types use the fiow of cuirent financial resources measurement focus and 
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accuial basis of accounting revenue are 
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i e , when they are "Measurable" means the amount of the 
transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period The government considers all revenues 
available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end Expenditures are recorded when the 
related fund liability is mcuired, except for un-matured principal and interest on long-term debt which 
IS recognized when due Compensated absences and claims and judgments are reported m a 
govei nmental fund only if the claims are due and payable 

With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are geneially included on the 
balance sheet Operating statements of these funds present increases and decreases m net cuirent 
assets The governmental funds use the following practices in recording revenues and expenditures 

Revenues 

• Ad valorem taxes are recognized when all applicable eligibility requirements are met and the 
resources are available 

• Sales and use tax revenues are recorded in the month received by the Town Fines, fees, and 
court costs are recognized m the period they are collected Franchise taxes are susceptible to 
accrual Occupational licenses are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not 
measurable until received in cash 

• Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded as unrestricted giants-in-aid at the time of receipt 
01 earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met Expenditure-driven giants are 
recognized when the qualifying expenditures have been mcuired and all othei giant 
requirements have been met and the susceptible to accrual critei la have been met 

Other receipts become measurable and available when cash is received by the town and are recognized 
as I evenue at that time 

Kxpenditures 

Salaiies are recoided as paid 

Other Financing Souices (Uses) 

Tiansfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid (or any other types, such as capital lease 
transactions, sale of fixed assets, debt extinguishments, long-term debt proceeds, el ceteia) are 
accounted for as other financing sources (uses) These other financing sources (uses) are recognized at 
the time the undei lying events occur 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and certificates of deposit Under 
state law, the Town may deposit funds m demand deposits, inteiest-beanng demand deposits, and 
money market or time deposit accounts with state banks organized under Louisiana laws and national 
banks having their principal offices in Louisiana 

Under state law, the Town may also invest m United States bonds, treasury notes or certificates 
Those with maturities of 90 days or less would be classified as cash equivalents and all others reported 
as investments 

The Town reports restricted assets on the Statement of Net Assets This is cash that is customer 
deposits in the water department 

Investments 

Under state law, the Town may invest m United States bonds treasury notes or certificates If the 
original matuiities of investments exceed 90 days, they are classified as investments, however, if the 
original maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents 

The investments are reflected at fair value except for the following which are permitted per GASB 
Statement No 31 

• Investments in non-paiticipating interest-earning contracts, such as nonnegotiable certificates of 
deposit with redemption terms that do not consider market lates, are reported using a cost-
based measure 

• The Town reported at amortized cost money market investments and participating interest-
earning investment contracts that have a remaining matuiity at time of purchase of one year or 
less 

• Interest-earning investment contracts include tune deposits with financial institutions (such as 
certificates of deposit), repurchase agreements, and guaranteed investment contracts 

• Money market investments are short-term, highly liquid debt instruments that include U S 
Treasury obligations 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

At June 30, 2011 the Town had investments summaiized as follows 

Amortized 
Cost 

Certificates of Deposit, 
Maturities greater than 90 davs $ 58.460 

Total $ S8,460 

Short-Term Inter-fund Receivables/Pavables 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gams 

? 

$ 

Gioss 
Unrealized 

Losses 

$ 

S 

Market Value 

J 58.460 

!K S8.46Q 

Duimg the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for services 
rendered These receivables and payables are classified as due from other funds oi due to other funds 
on the fund financial statements balance sheet Short-term inter-fund loans are classified as inter fund 
receivables/payables 

Elimination and Reclassifications 

In the process of aggregating data for the statement of net assets and the statement of activities, some 
amount reported as intei-fund activity and balances in the funds were eliminated or reclassified Inter­
fund receivables and payables were eliminated to minimize the "grossing up" effect on assets and 
liabilities within the govemmental activities columns 

Inventory 

Inventory is accounted foi using the consumption method, where expenditures are recognized as 
inventory is used All purchased inventory items are valued at cost (fiist-m, firet-out) Inventories of 
the Enterprise fund consists of repair materials, spare parts, consumable supplies and fuel 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recoided at either historical cost or estimated histoiical cost and depreciated over 
their estimated useful lives (excluding salvage value) Donated capital assets are recorded at then-
estimated fair value at the date of donation The capitalization threshold foi equipments is $500 
Estimated useful life is management's estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet service 
demands 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-lme method over the following 
useful lives 

Description Estimated Lives 
Building and impiovements 40-50 yeais 
Water System 25-40 years 
Sewei System 40 years 
Machinery and Equipment 3-20 yeais 
Vehicles 5-10 years 

In 2010, the Town implemented GASB 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting foi Intangible Assets 
Although the Town*s implementation was retroactive, the Town had no intangibles that net the 
capitalization threshold as of June 30, 2009 

DeFened Revenues 

The Town repoits deferred revenues on its Statement of Net Assets and Fund Balance Sheet Deferred 
revenues arise when resources are received by the Town before it has a legal claim to them, as when 
grant monies are received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures In subsequent periods, 
when the Town has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed and the 
revenue is recognized 

Compensated Absences 

The Town has implemented GASB Statement Number 16 "Accounting for Compensated Absences" 
Under GASB Statement Number 16, a liability for unpaid vacation that is attributable to seî vices 
already rendered and that is not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the 
employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to benefits 

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements For 
governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the 
amount that is noimally expected to be paid using expendable available financial resources These 
amounts are recoided in the account "compensated absences payable" in the fund from which 
employees who have accumulated leave are paid The noncurrent portion of the liability is not 
reported. 

Employees of the Town earn one week to three weeks vacation leave annually, depending upon length 
of service, with exceptions of two employees, vacation leave does not accumulate Employees earn 
fiom one week to three weeks of sick leave annually, depending upon length of service, employees are 
allowed to accumulate 45 days of sick leave All sick leave is forfeited upon termination of 
employment, except for appointed department heads Liability for these compensated absences is 
recorded on long-term debt in the government-wide statements The cost of leave privileges, 
computed m accoidance with GASB Codification Section C60, is recognized as a current - year 
expenditure m the General Fund when leave is actually taken 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

The Town has the following policy relating to vacation and sick leave 

A full-time employee after completing one year of continuous employment from the date of hire 
is eligible for forty hours vacation with pay An employee, upon completion of two years 
continuous employment from the date of hire is eligible for eighty hours of vacation with pay 
Upon completion of eight years of continuous employment, the employee is eligible for three 
weeks of vacation with pay No more than forty houis may be cairied over from one year to the 
next without the Mayor's approval 

Each employee is granted five days sick leave with pay annually with the extension of up to ten 
days if appioved by the Mayor Any extra sick days foi long-term illness must be appioved by 
the Town Council A maximum carry-over of five days is permissible 

The Town's recognition and measurement criteria for compensated absences follow 

Vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics are accrued as a 
liability as the benefits are earned by the employees When both of the following conditions are 
met 

A The employee's right to receive compensation is attributable to services already 
rendered, and 

B It IS piobabJe that the employees will be compensated for the benefits through paid time 
off or some other means, such as cash payments at terniination or retirement 

A liability for sick leave should be accrued using one of the following termination approaches 

A An accrual for earned sick leave should be made only to the extent it is probable that 
the benefits will result in termination payments, lathei than be taken as absences due to 
illness or other contingencies, such as medical appointments and funerals 

B Alternatively, a governmental entity should estimate its accrued sick leave liability 
based on the sick leave accumulated at the balance sheet date by those employees who 
currently are eligible to receive termination payments as well as other employees who 
are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments 

The Town uses the alternative approach accrue the liability foi sick leave which includes salary-
related payments 

Resti icted Net Assets 

Equity IS classified as net assets and displayed in three components (1) invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding 
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, oi other boi rowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
constiuction, oi impiovements of those assets, (2) restricted net assets - consists of net assets with 
constraints placed on the use either by (a) external groups such as creditois, giantois, contnbutions or 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

laws 01 regulations of other governments, or (b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation, and (3) unrestricted net assets - all othei assets that do not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "invested m capital assets, net of related debt" 

The government-wide statement of net assets reports $568,655 of restricted net assets, all of which is 
restricted by enabling legislation 

Beginning with the fiscal year 2011, the Town implemented GASB Statement 54, "Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions" This statement provides more clearly defined 
fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's 
fund balance more transparent The following classifications desciibe the relative strength of the 
spending constiaints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used 

• Non-spendable fund balance - amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) 
or are required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposed by their pioviders (such 
as grantors, bondholders, and highei levels of government), through constitutional 
provisions, or by enabling legislation 

• Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, 
using Its highest level of decision making authority, to be reported as committed, amounts 
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest level 
action to remove or change the constraint 

• Assigned fund balance - amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose, intent 
can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing 
body delegates the authority 

• Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose, positive amounts are 
reported on in the general fund 

The Board of Aldermen establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage 
of an oidinance or resolution This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget 
A fund balance commitment is further indicated m the budget document as a designation or 
commitment of the fund (such as for special incentives) Assigned fund balance is established by the 
Boaid of Aldermen through adoption or amendment of the budget as intended foi specific purpose 
(such as the purchase of fixed assets, construction, debt sei vice, oi for other pui poses) 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance Fund balance is further classified as non-
spendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned Proprietary fund equity is classified the 
same as m the government-wide statements 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fund Balances of Fund Financial Statements 

Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropiiable for expenditures or legally 
segregated for specific purpose Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans 
that are subject to change 

Inter-fund Activity 

Inter-fund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements oi tiansfers Loans 
are reported as inter-fund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation Services provided, deemed to be at maiket or neat market rates, are treated as revenues 
and expenditures/expenses Reimbursements are when on fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate 
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement All other inter-fund transactions are 
treated as transfers Transfers between governmental or propiietary funds are netted as part of the 
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements 

Sales Taxes 

The voters of the Town of Jonesboro levied a 1% sales and use tax on April I, 1980, to provide funds 
for any lawful activity of the Town In January 1988, the taxpayers of the Town levied an additional 
1% sales and use tax for a period often (10) years commencing August 1, 1989 In July, 1998, the 
taxpayers of the Town renewed the 1% sales and use tax for an additional ten (10) years commencing 
August I, 1999, In July, 2008, the taxpayers of the Town renewed the 1% sales and use tax foi an 

additional ten (10) years commencing August 1, 2009 The purpose of this tax is foi the construction, 
maintenance, repair and improvements of the Town's streets 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted m 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statement and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures duitng the reporting 
peiiod Actual results could differ fiom those estimates 

Budgets 

The Mayor and Town Clerk prepare a pioposed budget and submit the same to the Boaid of Aldermen 
no latei than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year The pioposed budget is reviewed 
by the board of aldermen and made available to the public At least ten days after publication of the 
call foi a public hearing The Town holds a public hearing on the proposed budget in ordei to receive 
comments from citizens Changes are made to the proposed budget based on the public heaiing and 
the desires of the Board of Aldermen as whole The budget is then adopted through the passage of an 
ordinance during the June meeting 

32 

—» r.^ :?«n 



Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 1 - Suminai7 of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Duiing the year, the Boaid of Aldermen should receive monthly budget compaiison statements, which 
are used a tools to control the operation of the Town The Town Clerk presents necessary budget 
amendments to the board when she determines that actual operations are diffeiing inateiially from 
those anticipated in the original budget The board in regular session reviews the proposed 
amendments, makes necessary changes, and formally adopts the amendments The budget was 
amended once during the yeai The Mayor and Boaid of Aldeimen must approve all changes in the 
budget The Town does not use encumbiance accounting m its accounting system 

Note 2 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Interest Rate Risk The Town does not have a policy addressing interest rate risk 

Credit Risk The Town's investments are in Certificates of Deposits which do not have credit rating, 
however, the Town does not have a policy addressing credit rate risk 

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits In the case of deposits, this is the iisk that in event of a bank failure, 
the government's deposits may not be returned to it As of June 30, 2011 of the Town's bank balances 
of $1,257,361, there was $494,387 that was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured 
and uncollateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or 
agent, but not in the Town's name Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized 
undei provisions of GASB Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statue 39 1229 imposes a statutory 
requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being 
notified by the Town that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon request The Town 
does not have a policy addressing custodial credit risk 

Note 3 - Receivables 

The following is a summary of receivables at June 30,2011 

Class of Receivables 
Other Receivables 
Utilities 

Billed utilities 
Gross Receiva 

Less allowance for un 
Net total receivj 

bles 
-collectables 
ible 

General 
200,134 

_ 
200,134 

_ 
$^00,134 

Utility 
Enteipnse 

-

110.099 
110,099 
33.033 

$ 77,Q6q 

Total 
200,134 

110.099 
310,233 
33.033 

im^m 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to (he Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 4 - Intcr-fund Transactions 

Inter-fund transfers include the following 

Transfers 

Transfer Out 

Fire Dept Ad Valorem Tax Fund 

Street Ad Valorem Tax Fund 

Street Sates Tax Fund 

Amount 

$ 113,135 

135.770 

1.018.468 

3 A . 2 6 Z m 

Transfer In 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 

Ad valorem and sales tax receipts are recorded m special revenue funds and then tiansfeired to the 
general fund where the expenditures are budgeted 

Note 5 - Capi tal Assets 

A schedule of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2011 

Goveniind'ital activities 

Capital asset not being depreciated 

Land 

Construction In Progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated 

Land Improvements 

Buildings & Building Improvements 

Fumiturc and equipment 

Vehicles 

Tot^l capita) assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Land Improvements 

Buildings 

Furniture and equipment 

Vehicles 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

Governmental activities 

Capital assets, net 

Balance 

BeEinnine 

$ 148,177 

259.810 

407.987 

551,501 
919,137 

1,843,442 

1.011384 

4 325.464 

1.167 
593,382 

1,592,736 
843.964 

3.031.249 
I,2?4.2I5 

JU,7.0?.202 

Additions 

$ 
986.799 

986,799 

502.865 

-
32,280 

51.104 

586.249 

27.659 

38,222 

53,686 
38.554 

158.12! 

428,128 

S 1,411.927 

Delelion 

S 
502.865 

502.865 

. 

-
34,541 

_ 
34.54] 

-
-

18.749 

_ 
18.749 
15.792 

.S__il 8,657 

Balance 

Ending 

$ 148,177 

743 744 

891.921 

1,054.366 

919,137 

1,841,181 

1.062 488 

4.877.172 

28,826 
631.604 

1,627,673 

882.518 

3.170.621 

1.706 551 

^ J L m A l l 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 5 - Capi tal Assets (continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Streets, Airport and Recreation 

Total 

$ 43.583 
74,873 
39.571 

$ 158.027 

Business Type Activities 

Capital asset not being depreciated 

Construction In Progress 

Total capital a.ssels not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated 

Water System 

Sewer System 

Equipment 

Buildings 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Water System 

Sewer System 

Equipment 

Buildings 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital a.ssels being depreciated, net 

Business Type Activities 

Capital assets, net 

Beginning 

Balance Additions 

S 254.907 $ 419.893 

254.907 . 

4,745,120 
3,421,677 

1.257.556 
125.411 

9.549.764 

828.793 
931,786 

496,585 
47.081 

2.304.245 
7 245.519 

^ 7 .m426 . 

419.893 

. 

-
59,314 

. 

59.314 

111,017 

88.704 

142,037 

3,133 

344.891 
(285.5771 

E — ^ m 

Deletion 

Ending 

Balance 

674 800 

674.800 

4,745,120 
3,421.677 
1,316,870 

125.411 
609.078 

939.810 
1,020,490 

638.622 
50.214 

2.649.136 
6.959.942 

3; 7.634.742 

Note 6 - Accounts, Salaries, and Other Payables 

The payables at June 30,2011, are as follows 

Accounts payable 
Payroll liabilities payable 

Wages payable 
Due to other funds 

Total 

General 
$ 86,273 

118,475 

22.403 
177.773 

$ 404.924 

S 

i 

Utility 
Enteronse 

102,577 
13,997 

5,886 
430.347 
552.807 

Total 
$ 188,850 

132,472 

28,289 
608.120 

JE.___91Lm 
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Town of Jonesboro 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
June 30,2011 

Note 7 - Compensated Absences 

The following is a summary of the changes in compensated absences for the yeai 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Additions 
Deductions 
Balance at the end of the year 

$ 27,929 
38,190 
33.130 

$•32.989 

Note 8 - Long-Term Liabilities 

The following is a summary of the long-term obligation transactions for the year ended June 30, 201 

Governmental activities 

Bonds payable 

Compensated absences 

Capital lease-1 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activiUes 

Bonds payable 

Compensated absences 

Capital leases 
Total business-type activities 

Long-term Liabilities 

Beginning 

Balance 

$ 
24,974 

65.833 

90.807 

2,290,847 

2,955 

708,771 

3.002.573 

S 3.093.380 

Additions 

$ 
38,190 

26.607 

64.797 

4.334 

26 607 

30.941 

S 95.738 

Deletions 

$ 
33,665 

18610 

52 275 

22.679 

3,799 

82 691 

109,169 

I 161.444 

Ending 

Balance 

$ 
29.499 

73 830 

103 329 

2.268,168 

3.490 

652.687 

2.924.345 

S3.Q27.674 

Amounts 
Due 

Within 

One year 

$ 
29.499 

20.930 

.50.429 

23,722 

3,490 

93 261 

120.473 

S 170.902 

The individual issue is as follows 

Bond Issue 

Business - type activities 

USDA - Water Revenue Bonds 

Series 2008 

Final 

Inieiest Payment Interest to Principal 

Issue D.ue Original Issue Rale Due Maturity Outstandine 

1/22/2009 $2,300,000 4 50% 1/22/2049 $2,432,618 $2,268,167 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

Note 8 - Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 

The annual requiiements to amortize all bonds outstanding at June 30,2011 areas follows 

For the year ended June 30, 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017-2021 

2022-2026 

2027-2031 

2032-2036 

2037-2041 

2042-2046 

2047-2049 

Total 

Principal 

$ 23,722 

24.812 

25,951 

27,144 

28,391 

167.757 

203,740 

255,039 

319,257 

399,644 

500,274 

297,437 

$ 2.268.167 

Interest 

$ 101.582 

100,492 

99,353 

98.160 

96,913 

463.763 

422,780 

371,481 

307.263 

226,876 

126,246 

17.708 

_$.^.432.6.li 

$ 

Total 

125,304 

125,304 

125,304 

125,304 

125,304 

626.520 

626.520 

626,520 

626,520 

626.520 

626,520 

315,145 

XA.mj^^ 

The capital leases are paid using resources from the governmental and business-type activities, 
whereas the compensated absences are paid using resources from the corresponding fund in which the 
salaries are being paid The bond principal payments are being paid from the business-type activities 

The Town records items under capital leases as an asset and an obligation in the accompanying 
financial statements 

The following is an analysis of capital leases 

Type 

Water meters 

Dozer 

Tractor and excavator 

Tractor and mower 

Excavator 

Govemmental or Business Tvoe Activities 

Business Type 

Half governmental and half business type 

Business Type 

Half govemmental and half business type 

Half governmental and half business type 

$ 

"$1 

Cost 

820,513 

93.965 

69.082 

88.945 

49.545 
.122,050 

Accumulated 

Deoreciation 

$ 295.520 

72.391 

34.605 

68,524 

4.955 
$ 475.995 

Nel Book 

Value 

$ 524,993 

21.574 

34.477 

20,421 

44.590 
$646,055 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 8 - Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, togethei with the 
picscnt value of the net minimum lease payments, as of June 30,2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017-2018 

Net minimum lease payments 

Less amounts representing interest 
Present value of net minimum lease 
payments 

Water 

Meters 

$ 88.000 

90.000 

91.000 

92.000 

94.000 

284 936 

654.936 

105.289 

JimMl 

Do7£r 

$ 15,816 

15.816 

15,816 

15.814 

-

. 

63,262 

3,972 

$ 59.290 

Tractor & 

i:\cavaior 

$ 11.831 

11,831 

11.831 

5.912 

-

. 

41.405 

3.195 

$ 38.210 

Traclor w/ 

Mower 

$ 14.971 

14,971 

14,971 

14,970 

-

. 

59.883 

6.670 

$ W.̂ 13 

Excavator 

$17,771 

17.771 

1.480 

-

-

. 

37,022 

1,865 

S35,l?7 

Total 

$148,389 

150.389 

135.098 

128.696 

94.000 

190 936 

847,508 

120,991 

$726,517 

Note 9 - Retirement Systems 

Substantially all employees of the Town of Jonesboro are members of the Municipal Employees 
Retirement System of Louisiana, Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, or 
Fuefighter Retirement System of Louisiana These systems are cost-shaiing, multiple-employer-
defined benefit pension plan administeied by sepaiate boards of tiustees 

The Municipal Emplovees Retirement System of Louisiana (Svstem) 

The Municipal Employees Retiiement System of Louisiana (System) is composed of two distinct 
plans. Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions All eligible employees of the 
Town are members of Plan A 

Plan Description 

All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week who aie not coveted by another pension 
plan are paid wholly oi m part from municipal funds and all elected municipal officials are eligible to 
paiticipate in the System Undei Plan A, employees who retire at or after age 60 with at least 10 years 
of creditable service and at or after age 55 with at least 25 yeais of creditable service oi at any age 
with at least 30 yeais cieditable sei-vice aie entitled to a letiiement benefit, payable monthly foi life, 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

Note 9 - Retirement Systems (continued) 

equal to 3% of their final-averagesalary for each year of creditable sei vice Final average salaiy is the 
employees* average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average 
Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated above, and do not 
withdraw then employee contributions, may letiie at the ages specified above and receive the benefit 
accrued to their date of termination The system also piovides death and disability benefits Benefits 
are established or amended by state statute 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
lequired supplementaiy information for the System The report may be obtained by witting to the 

Municipal Employees Retirement Systenx of Louisiana, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70809, or by calling (225) 925-4810 

Funding Policy 

Under Plan A, members are required by the state statue to contribute 9 25% of their annual covered 
salary and the Town of Jonesboro is required to contribute at an actuarially determined late The 
current rate is 14 25% of annual covered payroll Contributions to the System also include one-fourth 
of 1%, except foi Orleans Paiish and East Baton Rouge Parish, of the taxed shown to be collected by 
the tax rolls of each parish These tax dollars are divided between Plan A and Plan B based 
proportionately on the salaries of the active members of each plan The contribution requirements of 
plan members and the Town of Jonesboro are established and may be amended by state statue As 
provided by RS 11 103, the employer contnbutions are determined by actuarial valuation and are 
subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior year The Town of 
Jonesboro contributions to System under Plan A for the years ending June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009 
were $79,850, $80,668, and $78,503, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year 

The Municipal Police Emplovees Retirement Svstem of Louisiana (Svstem) 

Plan Description 

All full time police department employees engaged tn law enforcement are required to participate m 
the System Employees who retire at or after 50 with at least 20 yeais of creditable service ot at or after 
age 55 with at least 12 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly 
for life, equal to 3 1/3 percent of their final aveiage salai-y for each yeai of creditable service Final 
average salaiy is the employees' overage salary over the 3+ consecutive or joined months that produce 
the highest average Employees who teiminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated 
above, and so not withdraw their employee contributions, may retire at the ages specified above and 
receive the benefit accrued to then date of termination. The system also provides death and disability 
benefits Benefits are established or amended by state statue 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial repoit that includes financial statements and 
requiiesupplementaiy mfonnation for the System The leportmay be obtained by wilting to the 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2011 

Note 9 - Retirement System (continued) 

Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, 8550 United Plaza Boulevaid, Suite 
501, Baton Rouge, LA 70809-0200 or by calling (225) 929-7411 

Funding Policy 

Plan membeis are requited by state statue to contiibute 7 5% of then annual coveied salary and the 
Town of Jonesboro is required to contiibute at an actuarially detei mined rate The cuirent late is 25% 
of annual covered payioll The contribution lequiiements of plan members and the Town of 

Jonesboro are established and may be amended by state statue As provided by RS 11.103, the 
employer contributions are detei mined by actual lal valuation and are subject to change each yeai 
based on the lesults of the valuation for the prioi year The Town of Jonesboro contributions to the 
System under Plan A for the years ending June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $63,956, $39,541, and 
$34,687, respectively, equal to the required contributions foi each yeai 

The Fiiefighters Retirement Svstem of Louisiana 

Plan Description 

Membership of the Louisiana Firefighteis Retirement System is mandatory for all full time firefighter 
employees by a municipality, parish or fire protection distiict that did not enact an ordinance before 
January, 1980, exempting itself for participation in the System Employees aie eligible to retire at oi 
after age 55 with at least 12 years of creditable service or at oi after age 50 with at least 20 years of 
creditable service Upon retirement, members are entitled to a retiiement benefit, payable monthly foi 
life, equal to 3 1/3 percent of then final average salary for each year of creditable service, not to 
exceed 100 percent of their final average salary Final average salary is the employees who teiminate 
with at least 12 years of service stated, and do not withdraw their employee contributions, may retire 
at or after age 55 (or age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable sei-vice at teimmation) and leceive the 
benefit accrued t then date of termination The System also provides death and disability benefits 
Benefits are established or amended by state statue 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that included financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System The report may be obtained by wiiting to the 
Firefighters Retirement System, PO Box 94095, Baton Rouge, LA 70804 or by calling (225) 925-
4060 

Funding Policy 

Plan members are required by state statute to contribute 8 0% of then annual covered salary and the 
Town of Jonesboio is required to contribute at an actuarially determined late The curient rate is 
21 5% of annual covered payroll The contiibution requirements of plan members and the Town of 
Jonesboro are established and may be amended by state statue As provided by R S 11 103, the 
employei contributions are deteimined by actuarial valuation and ate subject to change each year 
based on the lesults of the valuation for the prior yeai The Town of Jonesboio contributions to the 
System under Plan A for the yeais ending June 30, 2011, 2010. and 2009 were $24,117, $18,503 and 
$15,404, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 10-On Behalf Supplemental Pny 

Certain employees meeting statutory qualifications m the fire and police department receive 
supplemental pay directly from the State of Louisiana This Supplemental pay m the amount of 
$68,500, IS recognized as intergoveinmental revenue and public safety expenditures in the following 
departments 

Police 
Fire 
Total 

Note 11 - Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation 

$ 53.625 
14,875 

$ 68,500 

At June 30, 2011, the Town is involved in several lawsuits In the opinion of the Town's legal 
council, the outcome of any remaining lawsuits will not materially affect the financial statements 

Note 12 - Risk Management 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss relating to torts, theft of. damage to, and destruction of 
assets, errors and omissions; injuries to employees, and natural disasters These risks are covered by 
commercial insurance purchased from independent thud parties, except for general liability, law 
enforcement officers' liability, and public officials' liability coverages that were obtained from the 
Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency, The Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency 
IS a municipal risk pool administeied by the Louisiana Municipal Association The Louisiana 
Municipal Risk Management Agency operates similar to a commercial insurance company Premiums 
are assessed members of the Louisiana Municipal Association annually, based on past experience of 
claims The Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency services all claims for risk of loss to 
which the Town is exposed and cannot assess additional amounts if losses exceed their piemiums (the 
covered risks are transferred to the Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency) No claims were 
paid on any policies during the fiscal year that exceeded the policies' coveiage amounts Theie were 
no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the year ended June 30, 2011 

Note 13 - Levied Taxes 

The following is a summary of authorized and levied property taxes 

Constitutional 
Operation and maintenance - fire protection 
Operation and maintenance - streets 

Authorized 
tVliDage 

7 66 
5 00 
5 00 

Levied 
Millace 

6 95 
5 00 
5 00 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 13 -Levied Taxes (continued) 

The difference between authoiized and levied millages is the lesult of leassessmcnts of taxable 
pioperty I equ lied by article 7, Section 18 (f) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 

A revaluation of all pioperty is lequired after 1978 to be completed no less than eveiy foui years The 
last revaluation was completed for the roll of January I, 2009 Total assessed value was $17,469,880 
m calendar year 2010 

State law requires the sheriff to collect property taxes in the calendar yeai in which the assessment is 
made Propeity taxes become delinquent January 1 of the following year If taxes are not paid by the 
due date, taxes bear interest at the rate of 1 25% per month until the taxes ate paid Aftei notice is 
given to the delinquent taxpayers, the sheriff is required by the Constitution of the State of Louisiana 
to sell the lease quantity of pioperty necessary to settle the taxes and interest owed 

The calendar year tax roll is prepared by the tax assessor and approved by the State Tax Commission 
m November of each year The amount of property taxes to be collected occurs in December 2010, 
and January and February 2010 All property taxes aie recorded in the general, special revenue, debt 
service and capital projects funds The Town considers the date penalty and interest accrues (January 
I, 2010) as the date an enfoiceable legal claim occuis for property taxes Property tax revenue is 
recognized in the period for which the taxes are levied (budgeted) Accoidingly, the property taxes are 
budgeted in the 2010-2011 fiscal year of the Town 

Estimated uncollectible taxes are those taxes based on past expeiience which will not be collected in 
the subsequent year and are primarily due to subsequent adjustments to the tax roll Historically, 
virtually all ad valorem taxes receivable were collected since they are secured by piopeity Therefore, 
there is no allowance for uncollectible taxes 

Note 14 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

Excess of Expenditures ovei Appropriations Individual Funds 

Budget Actual Vdnance 
Geneial Fund $ 2,965.667 $ 2,690,237 $275,430 
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$ 70.000 
6.000 
6.000 

6,000 
6.000 
6.000 

$ 100.000 

Town of Jonesboro 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 15 - Compensation of the Governing Board 

The schedule of compensation paid to the Mayor and Aldeiman was prepared in compliance with 
House Concurient Resolution No 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature As authorized 
by Town ordinance, aldermen weie paid $500 per month 

Leslie Thompson. Mayor 
LaStevic Cottonham, Alderman 
Devin Flowers 
Charla Mason- Melton 
Samuel Lamkin 
Renee Stringer 

Note 16 - Going Concern 

Incieasmg demands upon the cash flow of the town have caused the withdrawal of fund reserves to 
meet ongoing expenditures The lack of financial statements provided the mayoi and town aldeiman 
in recent preceding years has not allowed adequate planning and monitoring of the fiscal activities 
Revenue increases would be modest at best therefore expendituie reduction is critical for the town to 
continue as a going concern 

Management's plans regarding these matters include monthly financial statements provided the mayor 
and council and monitoring the budget to actual expenditures closely 

1 Overtime wages will be reduced in departments where it is feasible 

2 A reduction in staff will be considered for each department as a potential cost savings 
measure 

3 Monitoring expenditures on a line by line basts to inciease efficiency 

4 Consideration of public vote on a dedicated tax for the Fiie department 

5 Rate increases for water, sewer and garbage collection fees as appiopi late 

6 Consideration of allowing alcohol sales within the town to encourage new retail businesses 

7 Replenishment of fund reserves as the town's financial condition peimils 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30,2011 

Note 17 - Subsequent Events 

The management of the Town of Jonesboio, Louisiana evaluated subsequent events and transactions 
for potential lecognition or disclosure m the financial statements through May 18, 2012 the date which 
the financial statements were available to be issued 

Subsequent to the fiscal year end. tax liens were filed against the town by the Internal Revenue Service 
and the Louisiana Department of Revenue The liens were regarding payroll taxes not submitted to 
the tax authorities Both liabilities were paid in early in 2012 and the tax hens were removed 

The Legislative Auditors* Office is currently monitoring the Town's expenditures The Legislative 
council has recommended that a Financial Administrator be placed in the Town 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

(Part 2 of 2) 



TOWN OF JONESBORO 

General Fund 

Buflgcfnry Comparison Schedule 

For the Vcnr Ended June 30, 2011 

Kxluhii I 

Budficted Amounts 

Original 

Budgetary fund Balances, Beginning 180.864 

Final 

180.864 

Actual 

Amounts 

(Budgetary Basis) 

Variance With 

Final Budget 

Poisitivc 

(Negative) 

180,864 $ 

Resources (inflows) 

L^ocal sources 

Taxes 

Ad valorem 

Franchise tax 

Sales and use 

Olhcr taxes 

Licenses and pcrmils 

Pines, rorfeilurcs and court cosis 

Intergovernmental revenues 

Stale funds 

State revenue 

Other 

Fees, charges and commissions for services 

Use o f money and property 

Rents and royalties 

Other revenues 

Transrcrs from other funds 

Amounts available for appropnations 

Cliarges to appropnations (outflows) 

General govemnKnt 
Public safely 

Public works 

Capital outlay 

Debt service 

Principal 

Interest 

Total charges to appropriations 

Budgetary fund Balances, Ending 

115.900 

100.000 

870,000 

5,000 

101,000 

40.000 

80.500 

75,700 

293.967 

-
29,800 

45.000 

1.160.000 

3.097.731 

612.797 

1.135.770 

1,168,300 

-

-
-

2.916,867 

$ 180 864 

273.400 

100,000 

1,740,000 

5.000 

101.000 

41.300 

80.500 

67.700 

289,667 

-
34.799 

232.301 

. 

3.146.531 

722.732 

1.122 570 

1.120.365 

-

-
-

2.965.667 

S 180,864 S 

121,677 

I I U 5 2 

807.288 

5 309 

113,443 

14,659 

67.000 

15,223 

4(0.584 

1.693 

28.019 

113.574 

1.148,365 

3.139,050 

550.688 
1.041.241 

938.020 
144.894 

12.401 

2,993 

2.690.237 

448.813 $ 

((51.723) 

11.352 

(932.712) 

309 
12.443 

(26.641) 

(13.500) 

(52.477) 

120.917 

1.693 

(6.780) 

(118,727) 

1,148.365 

(7,481) 

172.044 

81,329 

182.345 

(144,894) 

(12.401) 

(2.993) 

275.430 

267.949 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 

Budgetaiy Fund Balances, Beginning 

Resources (inflows) 
Local sources 

Taxes 
Ad valorem 

Use of money and property 
Transfers from other funds 

Amounts available for appropriations 

Charges to appropriations (outflows) 
Transfers to other funds 

Total charges to appropriations 

Budgetary Fund Balances, Ending 

Fire Deportment Ad Vnlorcm Tax 

Budgetary Compnrison Schedule 

For the Vcnr Ended June 30.2011 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original I incl 

$ 50.827 S 50,827 

Eilithii 1-2 

Variance With 
Actual riiial Budget 

Amounts Poisiiivc 
(Budgetary Basis) (Negative) 

$ 50.827 $ 

S 

56.700 

107.527 

80.000 

80.000 

27,527 J 

136.700 

187.527 

80.000 

80.000 

107.527 S 

86.923 
324 

138.074 

113.135 

113.135 

24.939 J 

(49.777) 
324 

(49,453) 

(33.135) 

(33.135) 

(82.588) 
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fOWN OF JONESBORO 

Strcc Ad Vnlorcm Tox 

Budgetnry Compnrison Schedule 

For the Vcnr Ended June 30,2011 

ICxhiliil 1-3 

Budgetary Fund Balances, Beginning 

Resources (inflows) 
Local sources 

Taxes 
Ad valorem 

Use of money and property 
1 ransfers from other funds 

Amounts available for appropriations 

Charges to appropriations (outflows) 
Transfers to other funds 

Total charges to appropriations 

Budgetnry fund Balances, Ending 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original 

49,463 

56.700 

106.463 

80.000 

80.000 

26.463 

Variance With 
final Budget 

Pnisitive 
Final (Budgetary Basis) (Negative) 

49,763 $ 49,763 S 

136,700 

186.463 

80.000 

80.000 

106.463 

Actual 
Amounts 

157,947 

207.710 

135.770 

135.770 

21.247 

21.247 

(55.770) 

(55.770) 

71.940 S (34.523) 
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TOWN OF JONESBORO 

Street Snies Tax 

Budgetary Compnrison Schedule 

For the Yenr Ended June 30,2011 

Exhihil 1-4 

Budgetary Fund Balances, Bigmnmg 

Resources (inflows) 
Local sources 

Taxes 
Ad valorem 

Use of monty and property 
Transfers from other funds 

Amounts available for appropriations 

Charges to appropriations (outflows) 
Transfers to other funds 

Total charges to appropriations 

Budgetary Fund Balances, Ending 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original 

742,412 

Variance With 
Actual final Budget 

Amounts Poisitivc 

(Budgetary Basis) (Negulive) 

742.412 S 742 412 S 

Final 

870.000 
2,500 

1.614.912 

1.000.000 

1.000.000 

J 614.912 

1.740.000 
2.500 

2.484.912 

1.000.000 

1,000,000 

S 1.484.912 $ 

745.581 
2.252 

1,490.245 

1.018.468 

1,018,468 

471 777 S 

(994.419) 
(248) 

(994.667) 

18.648 

18.648 

(I.0I3.I35) 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules 

June 30,2011 

Note A - Budget Practices 

A proposed budget for the general fund and the special revenue funds of the Town of Jonesboro is 
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting The budget is legally adopted by the Town of 
Jonesboro and then amended during the year, as necessaiy The budget is established and contiolled at 
the object level of expenditures Appropriations lapse at year-end and must be re-appropriated for the 
following year The Town of Jonesboro authorizes all amendments to the budget One amendment 
was made to the original budget 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management contiol device during the year 

Note B - Budget to GAAP Reconciliation 

Explanation of differences between budgetary inflows and outflows and GAAP revenues and 
expenditures are piesented on the next page 

Note C - Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 

Budget Actual Variance 

General Fund $ 2,965,667 $ 2.690,237 $ 275,430 
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TOWNOFJONCSnOUO 

Notes to the Btidget.nry Comparison Schedules 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2011 

Soiirccs/inllo^vs of resources 

General 

Fire Dcpt 
Ad 

Valon-m 
Tax 

Street Ad 
Valorem 

lax 

Street Soles 
lax 

Acturol amounts (budgetaiy basis) "available for 
appropriation" from Ihe Budgetary Comparison 
Schedule 

StalL and Tederal grants not included in the budget 

The TUIK) Balance at the beginning of the year is a 
budgetary resource but is not a current-year 
revenue for financial reporting purposes 

Transfer from other funds are inflows for budget­
ary purposes bul 0re not revenue for financial repor­
ting purposes 

$ 3.139.050 S 138.074 S 207,710 S 1.490.245 

834,229 

(180,864) 

(1.148.365) 

(50,827) 49.763 (742.412) 

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of 
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances - Goverrimcnial Funds $ 2.644,050 S 87.247 J 257,473 S 747.833 

Uses/Outflows of resources 

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "Total charges 
to appropriations" from Ihe Budgetary Companson 
Schedule 

State and federal grants not included in the budget 

Transfers I other fbiids are outflows for budgetary 

purposes but are not expenditures for financial 

reporting purposes 

2.690.237 

834.229 

113.135 

(113.135) 

135.770 1,018.468 

(135 770) (1.018.468) 

Total expenditures as reported on the Suitement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
I3tilances - GovernmcnUil Funds S 3.S24.466 $_ - $ 
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Other Information 

The information in the followuig section concerns management's actions or 
intentions concerning prior- and current- year findings. This information has been 
prepared by the management of the Town of Jonesboro Management accepts fliU 
lesponsibihty for the accuracy of the information. This information had not been 
audited by the auditor and accordmgly, no opinion is expressed 
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JONALD ). WALKER III CPA 

MFMRER OF 
AMCRICAN INSTITUTE OF 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON 
APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

Mayor and Board of Aldeimen 
Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

We have perfoimed the piocedures included \w the Louisiana Govei nmental Audit Guide 
and enumerated below, as they are a required part of the audit engagement We are 
required to perform each procedure and report the results, including any exceptions 
Management is required to piovidc a collective action plan that addresses all exceptions 
noted Foi any piocedures that do not apply, we have marked "not applicable " 

Management of the Town of Jonesboro is responsible for its financial records, 
establishing internal controls over financial repoiting, and compliance with applicable 
laws and regulation These procedures were agreed to by management of the Town of 
Jonesboro and the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, solely to assist the users in 
assessing certain contiols and in evaluating management's asseitions about the Town of 
Jonesboro's compliance with certain laws and regulation duiing the year ended June 30, 
2011 included in the Louisiana Compliance Questioiinaiie 

949 RYAN ST STE 100 
This agreed-upon piocedures engagement was perfomied in accoidance with attestation 
standards established by the Ameiican Institute of Certified Public Accountants and 

LAKE CHARLES applicable standards of Govetninent Auditing Standaids The sufficiency of these 
piocedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of this report Consequently, 

LOUISISANA 70601 we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the piocedures described below 
either for the purpose which this report has been requested oi foi any other puipose 

(O I 337-478-7902 
Agreed Upon Piocedures Pei*roimcd 

(F) 337-478-3345 Financial Management 
1 Determine if management (chief executive and board members) was presented with 

timely and accurate monthly financial statements, including budget-to-actual 
comparisons on funds (General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Utility Fund, etc) of 
the entity, dui ing the year under examination 

Results 

In inquiries with the Mayoi and Town Council it was deteimined that the Mayor and 
Town Council were not provided with monthly financial statements during the time 
period of the examination With the assistance of external CPA engaged to serve as 
Town CFG, piocedures were put into place to have Mayoi and Town Council 
piesented with monthly financial statements These piocedures were implemented in 

' Decembei 2011 
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2 If management was deficit spending duiing the peiiod under examination, detei mine 
if there is a foimal/wiitten plan to eliminate the deficit spending and whethei 
management is monitoring the plan 

Results 

Based upon the unadjusted and unaudited liial balance statement, accounts payable at 
June 30, 2011 was$4l8,009 available cash was $978,642 The Town did have cash 
equivalents (CDs and short term investmenls in the amount of $564,493) 

A deficit spending policy was in development during the time of the piepaiation of 
this icpoit, but not in effect during the examination peiiod 

3 Determine if there are written policies and procedures for the following 
financial/business functions of the entity. 

• Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget 
IS in effect as of Decembei 29, 2011 

• Puichasmg, including (1) how purchases are initiated, (2) how vendors are 
added to the vendor list, (3) the preparation and appioval piocess of puichase 
requisitions and puichase oiders, (4) checks and balances to ensure compliance 
with public bid law, and (5) documentation requited to be maintained foi all 
bids and pi ice quotes 

• Disbursements, including piocessing, reviewing, and approving 

• Receipts, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits 

Results 

Budget foi fiscal year beginning July 1,2011 was voted on and adopted by the Boaid 
of Alderman on December 29,2011 

Theie were no policies in effect at June 30, 2011 relating to purchasing, 
disbursements oi receipts but were to be developed as soon as possible The policies 
were placed into effect Januaiy 2, 2012 for purchasing and disbursement and the 
following was noted in the review of those policies 

Purchasing, including how puichases are initiated, thiough a purchase ordei foim is 
included m the policy How vendors are added to the vendor list, is not addressed in 
the policy The preparation and appioval piocess of puichase requisitions and 
purchase orders, is appiopilately addressed in the policy Checks and balances to 
ensure compliance with public bid law, is appiopi lately addressed in the policy and 
documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes is adequately 
addressed withm the policy 

Disbursements, including piocessing, reviewing, and appioving piioi to payment ate 
stipulated coveting approval by the mayor and clerk, authorized signer of checks. 
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oiiginal documentation requirements, contiol of blank checks and the prohibition of 
cash payments 

Receipts, including receiving, recoidmg, and piepaiing deposits The policy in 
development was not received for review and an elTective date is not known 

Policies and piocedures foi each of the above areas were not in place during the 
examination period 

Ci edit Cards 

1 Obtain fiom management a listing of all active credit caids (and bank debit caids if 
applicable) for the penod under examination, including the card numbers and the 
names of the peisons who maintained possession of the cards 

Results 

The listing was obtained which includes four (4) Wal-Mart credit cards contiolled by 
the town clerk and kept in the vault at the Town Hall The caids are logged tn and 
out by the cletk to the authorized users of which there are eleven (U) 

Authorized users are comprised of the Mayor, town cleik, assistant to the 
mayor/deputy cleik, the fire and police chiefs, street department supervisor, diiectoi 
of public works, clerk for public works, administrative assistant to the chief of police, 
city court clerk and head janitor The Town Clerk maintains a listing of the credit 
cards, all issued in the name of the Town of Jonesboro and the number of each credit 
card 

The town has one debit caid issued by the Jackson Parish Bank and is kept in the 
vault and used only by the town clerk and only foi the purpose of paying for tiavel 
related expenses 

From inquiry of the town clerk it was deteimined that a bank Visa card had been 
obtained in the name of the formei town cleik and mailed to the Town of Jonesboro 
with contained a $10,000 credit limit The current town clerk informed reviewer that 
the Visa card had been cancelled Town clerk was unable to provide a copy of any 
correspondence oi documentation to the Visa card issuer that caid was cancelled A 
scan of the Town's general ledgei detected no transactions in the period undei 
examination of any chaiges made on said Visa card oi payments to the Visa card 
issuer 

2 Obtain and review the entity's wiitten policies and piocedures for credit caids (and 
debit cards if applicable) and determine if the following is addressed 

How cards arc to be contiolled 
Allowable business uses 
Documentation requirements 
Required approver 
Monitoiingcaid usage 
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Results 

Obtamed and reviewed the town's policies for ciedit/debit cards and debit caids The 
policies were not effective until January 02, 2012 The policies that went into effect 
on Januaiy 02, 2012 address the following as noted 

How caids are to be contiolled 
Allowable business uses 
Documentation requirements 
Required approvers 
Monitoring card usage 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
No 
No 

Obtain the monthly statements foi all credit caids (geneial, stores, and gasoline) used 
duiing the peiiod undei examination and select foi detailed review, the two largest 
(dollar amount) statements for each card 

a Obtain the entity's supporting documentation for the puichases/chaiges shown 
on the selected monthly statements 

• Detei mine if each purchase is supported by 

o An oiiginal itemized receipt (i e , identifies precisely what was puiehased) 

o Documentation of the business/public purpose (Note For meal charges, 
there should also be documentation of the individuals participating) 

o Othei documentation as may be required by policy (eg, purchase oider, 
authoiization, etc) 

Results 

The Visa card examined involved transactions relating to lodging, interest and late 
fees Three of the five hotel receipts/transactions listed on the statements examined 
were available foi inspection Only a reservation confirmation for one of the 
transactions was piovided Two of the tiansactions had no documentation found foi 
our review 

No documentation was provided for any of the tiansactions indicating the business 
puipose of the trips No business purpose, authorization, or appioval noted on any of 
the transactions examined Policies for ctedit caid usage and ttavel not in effect until 
January 02, 2012 Each monthly statement examined contained late charges, 
puichase interest charges and had an opening balance fiom the pi tor month A travel 
policy was adopted on January 02, 2012. This policy contains no limit or resti ictions 
to hotel lates or allowed oi piovides guidelines legauimg appioved or acceptable 
lodging based on cost 

The second caid examined was a retail sloie credit caid 42 transactions were 
examined 4 tiansactions had no receipts oi documenlation to support the 
transactions 3 transactions lacked support or indication of the business puipose 2 
tiansactions did not have pioper authoiization In 10 tiansactions examined, the 
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purchase oiders requisition form attached were dated aflei the tiansactions were 
enacted oi completed Written evidence of review and approval of the tiansaction 
was lacking in 7 transactions and 4 tiansactions did not have an appropiiate or 
necessary purpose determined oi documented 

The debit caid had no supporting documentation for eithci of the two tiansactions for 
each of the two months examined A total of foui transactions without 
documentation found 

• Determine if each purchase is. 

o In accoidance with thresholds oi guidelines established in the policies and 
piocedures 

o For an appropriate and necessary business puipose relative to the entity 

Resu Its 

Policies for credit cards and tiavel were not m effect until January 02, 2012 Later 
adopted tiavel policy contains no limit to hotel lates allowed 

An appropiiate and necessary puipose, such as travel to attend a confeience, was not 
determinable on 20 transactions examined on the caids listed above 

• Determine if any puichases were made for personal purposes If there are 
puichases made foi peisonal puiposes, deteimine the date(s) of reinibuisement 

Results 

The two months reviewed during the examination penod containing the laigest dollar 
amount of tiansactions was selected foi each of the two types of credit cards and the 
one debit card 

55 transactions were examined. 35 transactions appear to have an appiopilate 
business use. In the case of 15 transactions, we were unable to determine, due to 
insufficient documentation the purpose of the tiansaction 4 transactions were for 
late chaiges assessed or interest as each of the four months examined were all paid 
late 1 did not have a business purpose apparent from the description of the 
purchased items 

• Determine if any purchases effectively circumvented the entity's normal 
pioeuiemcnt/puichasing piocess and/oi the Louisiana Public Bid Law (i e , 
large ore recurring purchases lequiiingthe solicitation of bids and quotes) 

Results 

Of the 55 transactions examined tt appeals that the Town's normal 
procuiement/puichase process and/or the Louisiana Pubhc Bid Law were 
ciicumvcnted as there were 10 instances of puichase oiders issued aftei the date of 
purchase foi tiansactions on the Wal-Mait credit caid None of the purchases were 
large oi numeious to have a cumulative effect consideiation 

55 

100^0 



a Deteimine if there was any duplication of expenses by compai ing all tiavel and 
related puichases to the appiopi late peison's expense reimbursement report(s) 

Results 

42 tiansactions were examined and wiitten evidence of review and approval was 
lacking in 7 transactions on the store credit caid There were 7 tiansactions examined 
on two monthly statements of the Visa caid, all for lodging, with no receipts for 4 
tiansactions 3 tiansactions had receipts piovided but had no written evidence of 
review and appioval 4 transactions were foi late fees 

The two months examined on the debit caid each contained one chaige foi lodging 
with no documenlalion provided for the each transaction foi each month 

b Determine if finance charges and/oi late fees were assessed on the monthly 
statement 

Results 

Interest and late fees were assessed on both months examined for the Visa card and a 
late fee was applied to both months of the store credit caid Late fees and interest foi 
the two months examined totaled $133 77 

Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

I Obtain and review the entity's written policies and procedures for travel and expense 
reimbursement and deteimine if the following is addressed 

• Allowable expenses 
• Dollai thresholds by category of expense 
• Documentation requirements 
• Required approvers 

Results 

Policies and piocedures foi each of the above areas were m development but not m 
effect during the examination period A tiavel and expense reimbursement policy 
was placed into effect effective January 1, 2012. This policy however, lacks rate 
limits 01 restrictions for lodging expenses 

A Obtain a listing of all travel and related expense reimbuisements during the 
period under examination and select foi review, the one person who was 
reimbursed the most money 

B Obtain all of the expense reimbursement reports of the selected person, 
including the supporting documentation, and select the three laigest (dollai) 
expense reports to review in detail (there are only three or less expense reports, 
review all) 
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• Deteimine if each expenditure is 

o Reimbursed m accordance with wiitten policy (eg, rates established foi 
meals, mileage, lodging, etc ) 

o In accoidance with thresholds oi guidelines established m the policies and 
piocedures 

o FOI an appiopriate and necessaiy business purpose relative to the travel 

Results 

Reviewer obtained a list of tiavel and tiavel related expenses reimbursed during the 
period under examination The town cleik's tiavel expenses CNote The curient town 
clerk became the eleik effective January 1 K 2011 ) was selected foi examination pei 
the process stipulating the peison having the largest dollai amount of leimbuisement 
dui ing the exam period 

The three largest expense reimbursement repoits with a total of 7 transactions were 
selected for review having a combined amount of $1,032 47 2 transactions had no 
receipts provided totaling $215 90 for lodging and $75 43 foi meals and tips With 
no receipts available, the numbei and cost of meals is not determinable and as there 
was no wiitten policy in effect during the examination period adherence to said 
period cannot be determined 

The reimbursement rates used during the examination period for automobile mileage 
were inconsistent with no wiitten guidelines as to the effective rate or puipose for 
change The business purpose was documented for each of the three reports 
examined 

• Determine if each expenditure is supported by 

o An oiiginal itemized receipt (i e , identifies precisely what was purchased) 

o Documentation of the business/public purpose (Note For meal chaiges, 
there should also be documentation of the individuals participating) 

o Othei documentation as may be requited by policy (e g, authorization for 

Results 

Original receipts were not piovided relating to one repoit foi hotel accommodations 
oi for meals The business puipose was documented foi each of the three reports 
examined on the report summary Meal receipts did not indicate business puipose oi 
participants 

• Determine if any of the expendituies were foi personal purposes (e g, extended 
hotel stays before or after training class, meals foi spouses, entertainment, etc ) 
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Results 

Of the 7 transactions on the three repoits examined there were no exceptions noted 

• Deteimine if each expense report (including documentation) was reviewed and 
approved, m wiiting, by someone other than the person receiving 
reimbursement 

Results 

The travel was made by the town clerk and there was no written documentation by 
the mayor indicating approval for the travel icimbursemcnt 

A Determine if there was any duplication of expenses by comparing the expense 
reports to charges/purchases made on credit card(s) 

Results 

Seven transactions requested, no documentation oi receipts piovided on 2 of the 7 
transactions requested No exceptions noted on the 5 transactions examined 

Contracts 

1 Obtain and review the entity's written policies and procedures for 
contracts/conti acting, including leasing, and determine if the following is addressed 

• Types of services requiring wi itten contracts 
• Standard temis and conditions 
• Legal review 
• Appioval piocess 
• Monitonng process 

Results 

No wntten policies oi piocedures regarding contracts/conliacting in effect during the 
examination period A contracting for seivices policy was developed and became 
effective Januaiy 2, 2012 

Inspection of the Conti acting foi services policy specified that services were to be 
contracted accoidmg to Louisiana Public Bid Law This policy contains terms to 
comply with legal review, board approval requirement only It does not contain 
requirements foi the standaid teims and conditions, the approval piocess oi the 
monitonng piocess 

Although requested there was no policy foi contracts piovided for review 

1 Determine if the entity has centralized control and oveisight of contracts to 
ensure that services/deliverables received and payments made comply with the 
leims and conditions of the contacts 
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Results 

For the examination penod there is no centralized control, or ovcisight of contiacts in 
place When requesting documentation legaiding contracts there was no one person 
01 location foi any of the documents requested 

I Obtain and review the accounting records (eg, general ledgers, accounts 
payable vendor hisloiy repoits, invoices, etc) foi the penod undet examination 
to identify individualsybusinesses being paid foi contacted services (eg, 
piofessional, technical, etc) Select the five "vendors" that were paid the most 
money duiing the period and foi each 

• Determine if there is a formal/wiitten contract that supports the seivices 
arrangement and the total amount paid 

• Determine the business legitimacy of the vendor if not known by the 
auditoi (e g, look-up the vendor on the LA Secretary of State's website) 

Results 

A summary report of expenses by vendor was obtained and those receiving the 
largest payments and most likely should be contracted entities were selected for 
examination No wntten contracts were provided by the town but the five vendors 
were performing seivices or pioviding goods undei grants issued to the Town OWG 
of the vendors is the town's engineering firm foi which no contract with the fiim was 
provided The engineering firm is relied upon for compliance, monitoring and 
storing of documentation relating to grants as the town has no centralized system in 
place 

1 Obtain a listing of all active contracts and the expenditures made during the 
period under examination Select foi detailed review, the largest (dollai 
amount) contract in each of the following categones that was entered into 
during the period 

1) Seivices 

2) Materials and supplies 

3) Public Works 

Results 

No list of contracts oi contracts was provided by the Town foi examination Results 
in item number 3 above were utilized for the same examination puipose 

A Obtain the selected contracts and the related paid invoices and 

• Deteimine if the contact is a related party transaction 
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Results 

Inquiiy was made of officials of the Town regaiding any related party activities 
Town officials piovided no information regaiding any related party activities 
Auditor piovided Town officials with a Related Patty Questionnaires to be completed 
by the Mayor, members of the Board of Aldermen and Town department heads No 
related party activity was noted on the questionnaires returned to the auditoi by these 
officials 

• Deteimine if the tiansaction is subject to the Louisiana Public Bid Law 

o If yes, deteimine if the entity complied with all requirements (eg, 
solicited quotes oi bids, advertisement, selected lowest bidder, etc ) 

o If no, determine if the entity piovided an open and competitive 
atmosphere (a good business practice) for the transaction/work 

Results 

Bid packages were requested but not provided The Town relies upon the services of 
theengmeeiing firm for compliance and monitoring of grant expenditures 

One bid puichase was examined fiom documents received when performing different 
procedures The town purchased two police cars in January of 2011 The bid awaided 
the contract was the only bid provided with no indication of acceptance or approval 
wntten on the one paragiaph lettei which constitutes the bid There were no 
specifications foi the bid provided othei than the newspaper advertisement which was 
restnctive to one make and specific model There were no tabulations oi other bids 
provided for inspection and no written documentation of review, companson oi 
acceptance The accepted bid did meet the advertised requirements 

• Determine of the contract was awarded under the lequest foi pioposals 
(RFP) method If done so, obtain all proposals and the evaluation/sconng 
documents to determine of the contract was awaided to the most 
responsible offer or whose pioposal was the most advantageous taking into 
consideration price and othei evaluation factors set forth in the request foi 
pi oposals 

Results 

Per inquiry of the town cleik, there were no contracts awarded undci the request foi 
pioposal method 

• Determine it the piocurement was made "off' state contract (as opposed to 
following the competitive bidding requirements of the Louisiana 
Piocurement Code (RS 39 1551-1755), the set of laws that govern most 
state agencies' puichases of certain seivices, maleitals and supplies, and 
major lepaiis 
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Results 

Pei inquiiy of the town cleik, there were no contiacts awaided "ofP' state contract foi 
the penod under examination 

• Determine if the procurement related to homeland secunty was made fiom 
Federal General Services Administration (GSA) supply schedules If done 
so, deteimine if the entity (1) utilized a Louisiana licensed distnbutor, (2) 
used the competitive oidering piocedures of the federal GSA, and (3) 
received pi tot approval from the diiectoi of the State Office of Homeland 
Secunty and Emergency Preparedness, oi his designee 

Results 

Based upon the information provided and inquiiy of the town cleik there were no 
purchases related to Homeland Security or Emergency Preparedness 

• Determine if the entity "piggybacked" onto another agency's contract If 
done so, deteimine if there is documentation on file that clearly 
demonstrates the contract was a previously bid, viable contract and the 
price paid by the entity was the same as that contract's bid price 

Results 

Per inquiry of the town clerk, the Town did not "piggyback" any other agency's 
contract 

• Determine if the contract was amended If done so, deteimine whether the 
onginat contact contemplated or piovided for such an amendment 
Furthermore, deteimine if the amendment is outside the scope of the 
original contact, and if so, whether it should have been separately bid and 
contracted 

Results 

No contracts were amended during the examination period based upon discussions 
and inquiry of the town clerk 

• Determine if the invoices received and payments made duiing the penod 
complied with the terms and conditions of the contiact 

Results 

No contracts provided for examination Invoices examined foi one of the 5 vendors 
included one where the balance due to the vendor was $175,869 96 The amount due 
on the statement was $100,000 00 Town officials decided to pay the full amount of 
$175,869 96 Inquiry was made as to the reasoning behind the decision to pay the full 
amount due instead of the $100,000 that was cuirently due Statement was made that 
the Mayoi made the decision to pay the full amount of the statement as the Town had 
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been late with previous payments to the vendoi and that the full amount would have to 
be paid at sometime 

The second vendor providing seivices and/or malenals foi a general fund pioject had 
no documentation or copies of the two checks piovided for review Total amount paid 
this vendoi was $111,666 20 

FOI vendoi three, 6 invoices lacked written appioval for payment and 6 were not paid 
timely or the full invoice amount was not paid The 3 invoice copies provided were 
obtained via facsimile from the vendoi on the day of our examination, 1 invoice was 
not indicated as paid, did not indicate the check number oi the amount of the check 
There was one $2,000 payment in the general ledgei that had no documentation to 
support the payment These invoices were for engineering seivices fiom the Town's 
engineering film 

For the fourth vendor pioviding services and materials, there was insufficient 
documentation to adequately verify any of the 4 payments made The four payments 
to vendor totaled $67,650 73 in payments There was no wntten evidence of appioval 
of any of the payments 

Vendor 5 piovided services and materials and lacked wntten evidence of review oi 
approval by the mayor One requisition was provided and stamped approved but there 
was nothing documented indicating the person approving the transactions One 
payment lacking an invoice in the amount of $4,986 was paid twice according to 
documents provided by the town when it was noted in A request was made by the 
Town on August 26, 2011 for a refund of these funds. As of the date of this report the 
vendor has not made refund to the Town foi the ovei payment 

• Deteimine if there is written evidence that the entity's legal advisoi 
reviewed the contract and advised enteiing into the contract 

Results 

In the 5 transaction selected foi review, no evidence of review of contiacts by the 
Town's legal advisor was made available In an inquiiy with the Town's legal counsel 
he indicated that in the past there were no foimal piocedures in place to assure review 
by legal counsel before the Town entered into a legal contract 

Subsequent to an event involving a land transaction that was not property bid by the 
Town, Town legal counsel has indicated that piocedures are cuirently in place to ensure 
that all contracts and legal documents have a legal review before submitting for Town 
Council appioval and signature by the Mayor 

• Deteimine if there is documentation of the boaid appioval, if required 

Results 

No evidence of boaid appioval as no contracts was provided for the period undei 
examination Opening and consideration, rejection or acceptance of bids is noted in 
the minutes 
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Payroll and Personnel 

1 Obtain and review the entity's wntten policies and piocedures for payroll and 
personnel and deteimine if they address the processing of payioll, including 
reviewing and approving of time and attendance records, including leave and 
overtime worked 

Results 

No policies or procedures in effect dui ing the examination period relating to piocedures 
for payroll and personnel 

1 Obtain a listing of employment contracts/agreements in foice dunng the penod 
under examination Select the largest (dollar amount) employment contract and 
deteimine if all payments issued dunng the penod under examination were 
done m strict accoidance with the terms and conditions of the contract 

Results 

There were no listing or employment contiacts provided toi the examination penod 

2 Select the attendance and leave records for one pay pei lod and 

• Determine if all employees are documenting their daily attendance and 
leave (e g, vacation, sick, etc) (Note Generally, an elected official is not 
eligible to earn leave and does not document his/hei attendance and leave 
However, if the elected official is earning leave according to policy and/or 
contract, the official should document his/her daily attendance and leave) 

Results 

Attendance and leave records were obtained for one pay period and the attendance 
and leave information was examined Fiom a review of lime sheets, attendance sheets 
and logs and supervisoi's documents it appeal s that employees are documenting their 
attendance and leave adequately 

• Determine if supervisors are approving, in writing, the attendance and leave 
of all employees 

Results 

40 transactions were selected foi review In 31 transactions, supcivisors piovided 
pioper written approval of attendance and leave In 9 tiansactions impiopei oi no 
wntten appioval was found 

• Detein^me if the entity is maiiUaining accuiate wntten leave lecord (eg , 
hours earned, houis used, and balance available) on all eligible employees 
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Results 

Based upon the review of 40 transactions accuiate wntten leave lecoids are being 
maintained 

3 Select the five highest paid employees and determine if changes made to then 
hourly pay rates/salanes during the penod undei examination were approved in 
wilting and in accordance with policy 

Results 

Of the five employees selected, one had no exceptions noted Two employees had 
no effective date of change noted on the pay rate change foim and no 
authorization/approval was found oi noted in the recoids 

4 Select the five laigest termination payments (e g, vacation, sick, compensatory 
time, etc) made dunng the penod undei examination Determine if the 
payments were supported by documentation, made in strict accoidance with 
policy and/or contiact, and piopeily approved 

Results 

There was one employee that received a teimmation payment during the penod of 
examination The individual was the former fire chief for the Town who received a 
settlement after filing suit against the town for earned but unused compensatory 
time Documentation regarding transaction was review No exceptions were noted 

5 Determine if any employees were also being paid as contract labor during the 
penod of the examination 

Results 

A review was made of employees to determine of any were paid as contract laboi 
dunng the examination period No exception noted 

We were not engaged to perform, and did not perform, an audit, the objective of 
which would be the expression of an opinion on management's assertions 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion Had we performed additional 
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been 
reported to you 

This report is intended solely for the use of management of the Town of Jonesboro 
and the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, and should not be used by those who 
have not agreed to the piocedures and taken responsibility for the sufficiency of the 
procedures foi their purposes Undei Louisiana Revised Statue 24 513, this report is 
distnbuted by the Legislative Auditoi as a public document 

JonaldJ Walker III, CPA, LLC 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 
May 18,2012 
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T O W N O F J O N E S B O R O 

1 28 ALLEN AVE 
POST OFFICE BOX 6 i o 

JONESBORO, LA 7 I 25 I 
LESLIE c T H O M P S O N PHONE O I B ) 259-2385 

MAYOR OFFICE OF THE MAYOR FAX o i e i 259-4177 

April 25,2012 

The followmg items are the Town of Jonesboro's management responses to the mdependent 
accountant's report on agreed upon procedures 

A. The Town has not had a deficit and spending problem, thus was not aware that we needed 
a policy to prevent it. However, we are now workmg on a pohcy 

B The town minutes need to be corrected to reflect that the budget was adopted by the 
Board on June 30, 2011 

C With the assistance of the external CPA engaged to serve as Town CFO, that policy is 
now in place. 

D. With the assistance of the external CPA engaged to serve as Town CFO, the debit card 
policy is now in place 

E With the assistance of the outside CPA engaged to sei-ve as Town CFO, the credit card 
and travel policies have not been implemented 

F. With the assistance of the external CPA engaged to serve as Town CFO, the Town Clerk 
has developed a better record keepmg system 

G. With the assistance of the external CPA engaged to sei"ve as Town CFO, The Town Clerk 
has developed a better record keeping system 

H The Town does not concur that the LA Pubhc Bid Law was circumvented There was not 
a like Item purchased that exceeded the law threshold limit that would have constituted a 
violation 

I With the assistance of the external CPA engaged to serve as Town CFO, the Town Clerk 
has developed a better record keeping system 
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J. With the assistance of the external CPA engaged to serve as Town CFO, the travel policy 
is now implemented 

K. With the assistance of the external CPA engaged to serve as Town CFO, tlie Town Clerk 
has developed a better record keeping system 

L. With the assistance of the external CPA engaged to serve as Town CFO, the travel policy 
is now implemented. 

M A centralized control unit has now been set up and the oversight of contracts has become 
a part of the overall records retention process. Presently, the administration relies 
primarily on our Engineer to maintain grant contract and contractor files. However, our 
new system will require m-house filing and duplication. 

N With the assistance of the external CPA engaged to serve as Town CFO, the Town Clerk 
has developed a better record keeping system 

O The vast majority of the findings include the absence of policy, procedures, and record 
keeping. While it is apparent that the Town of Jonesboro has not been required to have 
these policies in place pnor to my administration, we are making great strides to 
implement them now, as noted by the Auditor's findings Last year, the Town hired a 
Certified Financial Officer whose job it was to improve the efficiency of the Town's 
operations. The CFO's work has pnmanly focused on the period between the years of 
2011-2012, while the above mentioned findings are items relating to the 2010-2011 audit 
penod I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Legislative Auditors for 
identifying the Town's operational weakness and for recommending the employment of a 
CFO for the purpose of training of staff and enhancing our operations. However, while 
we are able to see tremendous improvements, we are all aware that the real fruit of our 
labor will not come to fruition until the results of our next year's audit are made 
available 

Signed, 

Mayor lies 

-Jon 11 



Town of Jonesboro 
Schedule of Expenditures of Fedeial Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30,2011 

Federal Grantor Pass-through 
Giantor/Program Name 

U S Department of Transportation 
Direct 

Federal Aviation Administration 
Airport Improvement Program 
Airport Improvement Program 

Federal 
CFDA 
Number 

Pass-Through 
Identifying Federal 
Number ExDcnditiire 

20 106 
20 106 

N/A 
N/A 

465,061 
69,781 

Environmental Protection Agency 
Passed through LA Dept of Environmental Quality 

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water (ARRA) 66 458 

Total Federal Awards 

CS221730-01 539.811 

$1.074.653 

The accompanying footnotes to Schedule of Expendituies of Federal Awards are an integral part of this 
schedule 

65 

700 ,72 i 



Town of Jonesboro 
Notes to the Schedule of Expendituies of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011 

Note 1 - General 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Fedeial Awaids presents the activity of all federal awards 
programs of the Town of Jonesboro. The Town's reportmg entity is defined in Note 1 to the Town's 
financial statements Federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards 
passed thorough government agencies, is included on the schedule 

Note 2 - Basis of Accountmg 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which is described in Note 1 of the Financial Statement to the Town's financial statements 

Note 3 - Relationship to Financial Statements 

Federal awards expenditures are reported in the Town's financial statements as components of the 
following 

General Fund State and Federal Revenue $ 934,476 
Enterprise Fund State and Federal Grants 140,177 

Total £ 1.074.653 

Note 4 - Relationship to Federal Reports 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts reported in the related federal 
financial reports except for changes made to reflect amounts in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America and limitations of the Town's accounting records 
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}ONALD ). WALKER III CPA 
LLC 

949 RYAN ST STE 100 

LAKE CHARLES 

MEMBER. OF 
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OP 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Leslie Thompson, Mayor 
and Members of the Board of Aldeimen 
Town of Jonesboio 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana's 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively 
comprise the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana's basic financial statements and have issued our 
report thereon dated May 18, 2012 We did not express an opinion on the financial 
statements because madequacies m the Town's accounting recoids, we were unable to form 
an opmion regarding the amounts recorded as opening balances for liabilities and fixed 
assets and the income and expense oi expenditure allocation between departments and funds 

Internal Contiol Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing oui audit, we considered the Town of Jonesboio, Louisiana's 
LOUISISANA 70601 "itemal control ovei financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing piocedures for 

the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not foi the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana's internal 

(O) 337-478-7902 contiol over financial reporting Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town of Jonesboio, Louisiana's miemal contiol ovei Tinancial reporting 

(F) 337-478-3345 
Our consideration of internal contiol over financial reporting was for the limited puipose 
described in the preceding paragiaph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control ovei financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies, or mateiial 
weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, oi mateiial weaknesses have been identified However, as desciibed in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies 
in mtcinal control ovei financial reporting that we considei to be mateiial weaknesses and 
other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies 

A deficiency m internal connol exists when the design oi opeiation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, m the noiinal coui-se of pei forming then assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis A mateiial 

' weakness is a deficiency, oi a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there 
IS a reasonable possibility that a mateiial misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
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will not be prevented, or detected and collected on a timely basis We considei the 
deficiencies 2011-01, 2011-02 and 2011-03 desciibed in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contiol 
that IS less severe than a mateiial weakness, yet important enough to meiit attention by those 
charged with governance We consider the deficiencies 2011-04, 2011-05, 2011-08, 2011-09, 
2011-10 and 2011-11 described in the accompany schedule of findings and questioned costs 
to be significant deficiencies 

Compliniice and Other Mnltci-s 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whethei the Town of Jonesboro Louisiana's 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and giant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the deteimmation of financial 
statement amounts However, pioviding an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit, and accoidingly, we do not express such an opinion The 
results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance oi other matteis that are required to 
be reported undei Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2011-06, 2011-07 and 
2011-14 

The Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana's response to the findings identified in our audit is 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs We did not audit 
the Town of Jonesboio Louisiana's response and, accoidingly, we express no opinion on it 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management. Town Council, 
otheis within the oiganization, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties 
However, under Louisiana Revised Statue 24 513, this report is distributed by Louisiana 
Legislative Auditoi as a public document 

JonaldJ Walker III. CPA, LLC 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 
May 18,2012 
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JONALD J. WALKER III CPA 
LLC 

MEMBER OF 
AMCRICAN INSTITUTE OF 

CERTir iED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH 
: . REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATEIUAL EFFECT ON 
! EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVERCOMPLIANCE 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Honorable Leslie Thompson, Mayor 
and Members of the Boaid of Aldermen 
Town of Jonesboro 
Jonesboro, Louisiana 

Compliance 

We have audited Town of Jonesboio, Louisiana's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described m the OMB Ciiculai A-133 Compliance Supplement that could 
have direct and material effect on each of Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana's majoi fedeial 
piograms for the year ended June 30, 2011 The Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana's major 
fedeial programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major 

949 RYAN ST STt federal programs is the responsibility of the Town of Jonesboio, Louisiana's management 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Town of Jonesboio, Louisiana's 

LAKE CHARLES compliance based on our audit 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
LOUISISANA 70601 accepted m the United States of Ameiica, the standaids applicable to financial audits 

contained m Government Auditing Standards^ issued by the Comptioller General of the 
(O) 337-478-7902 United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-

Pr'ofit Organizations Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and 
pei-foim the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 

(F) 337-478-3345 types of compliance requirements lefeired to above that could have a direct and mateiial 
effect on a major federal piogram occurred An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana's compliance with those lequirements 
and peifoiming such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances 
We believe that oui audit provides a reasonable basis foi our opmion Our audit does not 
piovide a legal deteimmation of the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana's compliance with 
those requirements 

As described in item 2011-15 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs, the Town did not comply with requirements regaiding cash management that are 
applicable to the Airport Improvement Piogram, CFDA# 20 106, and the Capitalization 
Grant for Clean Water CFDA# 66 458 Compliance with such requiiements is necessary, 
in our opinion for the Town of Jonesboio, Louisiana to comply with the requirements 

I applicable to that program 
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In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described m the preceding paiagiaph, the 
Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana, complied, in all mateiial respects, with the compliance 
requirements refeired to above that could have a direct and mateiial efiect on each of its 
major federal programs for the yeai ended June 30,2011 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana, is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control ovei compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal piograms In planning and 
pel forming our audit, we considered tlie Town of Jonesboio, Louisiana's mternal control 
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and mateiial effect on a 
majoi federal piogram to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on compliance and to test and repoit on internal contiol ovei compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance Accoidingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Jonesboio, Louisiana's mternal control over 
compliance 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited puipose 
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that might be significant deficiencies or mateiial 
weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified However, as discussed below, 
we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be 
matei lal weaknesses and other deficiencies that we considei lo be significant deficiencies 

A deficiency m internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
contiol over compliance does not allow management or employees, m the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a fedeial program on a timely basis A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, oi combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis We consider the 
deficiencies m internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as item 2011-15 to be material weaknesses 

A significant deficiency m internal control over complrance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control ovei compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to meiit attention by those chaiged with 
governance We consider the deficiencies m internal control over compliance described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2011-16 to be 
significant deficiency 

The Town of Jonesboio, Louisiana's responses to the findings identified in our audit are 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs We did not audit 
the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana responses and, accoidingly, we express no opinion on 
the responses 

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of the financial of the Town of 
Jonesboio, Louisiana's govemmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Town of Jonesboro, Louisiana as of and for the yeai ended June 30, 
2011, which collectively compiise the Town of Jonesboro Louisiana's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 18, 2012 We did not express an 
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opinion on the financial statements because of inadequacies in the Town's accounting 
lecoids, we were unable lo form an opmion regardmg the amounts recorded as opening 
balances foi liabilities and fixed assets and the income and expense oi expenditure 
allocation between departments and funds The accompanying schedule of expenditures of 
federal awaids is presented for purpose of additional analysis are required by OMB A-133 
and IS not a required part of the basic financial statements We express no opinion on the 
schedule of expenditures of fedeial awards 

This report is intended solely foi the infoiniation and use of the Council, management, 
fedeial awaiding agencies, and pass-lhiough entities and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone othei than these specified parties Although the intended use of 
these reports may be limited, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24 513 this report is 
distributed by the Office of the Louisiana Legislative Auditoi as a public document 

Jonald J Walkei HI, CPA, LLC 
Lake Charles, Louisiana 
May 18,2012 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

A. Siiinmary of Results 

1 The type of audit report issued was a disclaimei 

2 There were six significant deficiencies required to be disclosed by Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America There were 
three deficiencies reported as material weaknesses 

3 There were three instances of noncompliance considered material, as defined by the 
Government Auditing Standards, to the financial statement 

4 There were two significant deficiencies required to be disclosed by OMB Circular A-133 
Three significant deficiencies were considered to be material weaknesses 

5 The type of report the auditor issued on compliance for major piograms was qualified 

6 The audit disclosed two audit findings which the auditor is required to report under OMB 
Circular A-133, Section 510(a) 

7 The major federal piograms are 

CFDA Number 
Airport Improvement Program 20 106 
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water (ARRA) 66 458 

8 The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as described 
in OMB Circular A-133, Section 520(b) was $300,000 

9 The auditee does not qualify as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular A-133, Section 530 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

B. Findings - Financial Statement Audit 

INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE FINDINGS 

2011-01 General Accountmg 

Condition 

The town began in April 2011 using Quick books software for the accounting function with the assistance 
of an outside CPA firm serving as the Town's CFO The utility department uses a non-integrated 
software package for revenues and receivables with a manual entry into the Quick books accounting 
software The CPA firm was hired to assist the town m addressing audit findings and implementing 
better accounting and recoid keepmg practices 

Criteria 

Good controls over financial records of the Town should include written policies and procedures, 
segregation of duties, proper reconciliations, approval of manual journal entiies, and adequate financial 
information provided to the Town Council and department heads All payables and receivables should be 
recorded at year end and prior year receivables and payables reversed 

Cause 

Bank accounts are being reconciled but not all agreed to the general ledger at year end, a bank 
reconciliation policy is being developed Policies and procedures concerning most areas of the town were 
under development at year end but not placed into effect for several months after year end 

Restrictions on cash and cash equivalents was not determinable through inquiry and investigation during 
the audit There are restrictions on tax revenues collected for specific funds and to comply with grant and 
loan covenants but compliance could not be verified 

In a test of cash disbursements, some checks were not located and documentation including written 
evidence of review and approval by the mayor or other authorized official were lacking Check copies and 
supporting documentation of disbursements, such as invoices, are filed in check number ordei and not 
alphabetically under the entity being paid 

The reason for this method of filing was understood to help coirect the problem of accounting for checks 
issued which were not found in prior audits This method of filing contributes to the difficulties m filing, 
maintaining and retrieving the documents however 

An ongoing control log of journal entries is not maintained noting reason for the entry and appiopriate 
supervisoi approval There was no centralized control over contracts oi giants therefore when requested, 
a list of contracts and giants could not be provided 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30,2011 

Effect 

Misstatements in the financial statements, related notes, or suppleinentaiy information may occur and not 
be detected within a timely period 

Poor accounting controls, lack of appropriate review and approval, inability to retrieve documents, 
posting erroi's and financial statements not being provided to the mayoi and aldermen contribute to 
insufficient information to pioperly plan and operate the financial activities of the town Monitoring and 
managing the day to day progress of the Town is critical in the management of cash flow to prevent future 
economic haidships 

Recommendation 

Town records its cash activity through several cash accounts Auditor understands this situation exists 
partly in an effort to separate certain funds and grant activities from Town's noniial operations Auditoi 
suggests however, that this type of segregation can be accomplished thiough a recording function of the 
accounting system The operating bank account of a cash fiow system is the major link of internal 
accounting controls over both cash receipts and cash disbursements, if operating activity is handled 
through more than one bank account, internal controls tend to be weakened To strengthen internal 
control, auditor recommends that the Town deposit all receipts and disburse all expenditures from one 
mass checking account (unless mandated by statue or funding source requires separate checking 
accounts). Any necessary segregation for fund or grant cash and activity can be done through the 
accounting records 

It IS recommended that the town consider changing the method by which vendor invoices and payments 
are filed Alphabetically filing by vendor would make location of documentation fastei and aid m other 
areas of monitoring such as for grant purposes 

Response 

The Town hired an outside CPA firm that established a system for bank reconciliations to be done on a 
monthly basis, and to guard against the comingUng of dedicated and non-dedicatcd funds A centralized 
control unit of grants is presently being developed The Town also recognized the auditor's concern in 
reference to our ability to retrieve ceitain records and invoices, and is considering changing to an 
alphabetical style of invoice filing 

2011-02 Imnrovenient of Controls 

Condition 

Good controls require that appropriate documentation to support all payments is maintained, more than 
one individual be involved in the disbursement process, and bills be paid on a timely basis to avoid 
penalties and interest 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

From a haphazard sample of checks multiple instances of the following was noted 

• No documentation was provided for some checks 
• Puichase orders for some of the checks could not be piovided and some of the puichase orders 

were post-dated 
• Numerous checks were paid more than 30 days after the invoice date 

Our examination of the organization's piocedures and transactions relating to the payroll function 
disclosed the following 

• The employee responsible for processing payroll has the ability to add employees, change 
employee information, enter daily time and attendance for hourly employees, update pay rates, 
and maintain all supporting payioll documents 

• Documentation refiectmg approved changes to employee salaries in some instances was not on 
file m the employees file 

• There was no evidence supporting an independent administrative review of payioll transactions 
and reports by management 

Criteria 

Management is responsible for establishing internal control policies and procedures that provide for 
proper accounting, reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss resulting from 
unauthorized use, and that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization 

Effective internal control should include vendor disbursements having original documentation (invoices, 
etc), proper approval, and paid timely. Payable disbursements should have proper support, salary rates 
that match salary schedules, and overtime pay approved by appropriate personnel Time cards or pay 
sheets should be signed by the employee and supervisor 1-9 forms should be kept on all employees 
Credit card and charge account payments should be supported by statements and adequate receipts 
containing written evidence of appropriate review and appioval 

There is poor control over vendor and payroll disbursements and credit/debit card usage needs 
strengthening 

EffecL 

Internal control over disbursements is not adequate resulting in untimely and unsupported payments 

Recommendation 

Management should develop a foimal plan that includes both short-and long-term spending to ensure it 
can operate withm available funding Stiong controls should be implemented over the disbursement 
process to ensure that (I) more than one individual is involved m the process (e g, receiving, recording, 
reviewing, approving and paying), (2) documentation to support all bills and payments is complete and 
maintained intact, and (3) all bills are paid timely, including the amounts withheld/deducted fiom 
employee paychecks 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30,2011 

All vendor payments in the future should include original documentation (invoices, etc) and should be 
paid timely Records supporting disbuisements should be propeily maintained All employees should 
have a completed 1-9, W-4 and L-4 forms The Town should establish and maintain a salary schedule 
There should be a form foi employee evaluations and raises and should be maintained in the employees' 
files All salary increases should have the proper approval on the form and contain the effective date 
Time cards/or pay sheets should be signed by the employee and the supervisor All overtime should be 
authorized by the appropiiate official and evidenced in writing 

Response 

The external CPA has assisted the Town with creating stronger internal contiols with reference to our 
credit/debit card usage The Town has also hired a new accountant whose responsibility it is to maintain 
employee files with proper documentation, and to insure that vendoi-s are paid timely 

2011- 03 Inadequate Controls over Financial Reporting 

Condition 

Financial statements are not prepared monthly on funds (eg , General Fund, Enterprise Fund) of the 
Town Monthly budget-to-actual comparison schedules are not prepared and piesented to the mayor and 
council for discussion 

Criteria-

Adequate internal controls in relation to financial reporting require that specific procedures be in place to 
ensure that transactions are properly supported and recorded on a timely basis In addition, controls 
should be in place to ensure the appropriate oversight of funds and monthly transactions from those 
charged with governance Monthly financial statements should be provided to the mayor and town 
council for their review The financial activity and comparison to budgeted amounts is necessary for the 
proper stewardship of the town. 

Management is responsible for establishing internal control policies and procedures that provide for 
proper accounting, reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss resulting fiom 
unauthorized use, and that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization 

Cause 

The Town did not maintain an adequate contiol environment due to lack of monitoring and oversight by 
those charged with governance Monthly financial statements were not prepared for the mayor and town 
council during the audit penod due to the accounting records not being curient 

An internal control system was not designed and/oi implemented to ensure that adequate controls were in 
place in all areas to prevent, detect, and correct noncompliance in a timely manner Management of the 
Town was not seeking advice and reviewing transactions on a regular basis to ensure that financial related 
matters were in compliance 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30,2011 

Effect 

The lack of adequate internal controls relating to general ledgei maintenance significantly increases the 
risk that material error and irregularities could exist and not be detected The lack of oversight 
significantly increases the risk of the misappropriation of assets Lack of complete accountmg records 
necessary to prepare financial statements Management of the Town does not have financial information 
necessary to plan and operate the Town effectively Without complete financial information on all funds 
on a timely basis, including budget-to actual compai isons, the mayoi and council cannot effectively 
exercise its fiduciary responsibilities of monitoring and managing the Town's fiscal affairs 

Recommendation 

The organization should review its existing controls over financial reporting and adopt and implement 
policy and procedures that will ensure the safeguarding of the Town's assets, reporting accurate financial 
data and that personnel comply with policies, procedures and regulations. In addition, the organization 
should complete its review of the draft "Accounting Policy and Procedures Manual," maintain the general 
ledger on a timely basis including posting transactions, completing account reconciliations, and preparing 
monthly financial statements The organization should develop a wntten accounting policy manual which 
includes month-end procedures along with formal approvals and other control procedures Those in 
charge of governance should monitor the process to ensure compliance with the policies established The 
mayor should ensure that he and the council are presented each month with current financial statements 
(eg . Balance Sheet, Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance, Cash Flow 
Statements for all funds of the Town, including budget-to-actual comparisons and warning of any 
correctwe action needed to be taken (e g, amending the budget) 

Response 

The new system recently implemented provides for the Mayor and Council to be presented with complete 
financial information which includes budget-to-actual comparisons This information is now provided on 
a monthly basis to the Mayor and Council, and should not only significantly reduce the nsk of 
misappropriation of assets, but should greatly enhance the fiduciary responsibility of those in charge of 
monetary decisions that impact the Town's fiscal affairs 

2011-04 Inadequate Design of Internal Control over Financial Statement Prcnaration 

Condition 

The Town's staff responsible for preparation of the financial statements and related footnote disclosure in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting piinciples (GAAP) lacks the resources and/or knowledge 
necessary to internally complete the reporting requirements 

Although management of the Town does not actually prepare and draft the financial statements, related 
notes, and supplementary information, they should have the capability and experience to oversee the 
process They provide all of the information to be included and they should understand the presentation 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30,2011 

Criteria 

Effective for financial statements ending on or aftei December 15, 2006, Statements on Auditing 
Standards 112 expands management's responsibility to ensure the piopiiety and completeness of the 
financial statements and related footnotes 

Management of the Town should have suitable skill, knowledge, or expenence to prepare financial 
statements, the related notes, and the supplementary infoimation m accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America Internal controls should be adopted and implemented 
to prevent, detect or correct a misstatement in the financial statements, related notes, or supplementary 
information 

Cause_ 

The conditions are due to economic limitations Management has not prepared a job description that 
requires the Town to hire a person that has adequate education, background, and training to prepare 
financial statements in accordance with accounting pnnciples generally accepted m the United States of 
Amenca 

Effect 

Town IS unable to meet the required standards to ensure completeness of the financial statements and 
related footnotes 

Misstatements in the financial statements, related notes, or supplementary information may occur and not 
be detected within a timely period The amounts by which not implementing GASB Statement No 45 
would affect the liabilities and net assets of the governmental activities are not known 

Recommendation 

The Town should either I) obtain the resources and/or knowledge necessary to internally prepared or 
review the auditor's preparation of the financial statements and related footnote disclosures in accordance 
with GAAP, or 2) detemiine if the cost of I)overndesthe benefit of correcting this control deficiency 

Management of the Town should make a determination as to whether the cost of correcting the deficiency 
concerning the expertise of accounting personnel exceeds the expected benefit to be derived from doing 
such 

Necessary steps should be taken to record postemployment benefits for retired employees in accordance 
with GASB Statement No 45 

Response 

The Town recognized it's deficiency concerning the expertise needed in the area of accounting 
Therefore, we replaced personnel and hired an m-house accountant We also contracted the services of an 
external CPA whose services were provided after this audit period The Town has recently entered into a 
contractual consultation agreement with the CPA firm to assist with our financials as the Town prepares 
for its next fiscal year audit 
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Town of Jonesboio 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30,2011 

2011-05 Capital Asset Management 

Condition 

The Town does not have procedures in place where an employee maintains a complete listing of the 
Town's capital assets nor do they have procedures to ensure all additions and deletions are propeily 
reflected and monitored There was no annual physical inventory of capital assets taken as required for 
good internal controls noi are all assets properly tagged 

Criteria 

I^uisiana Revised Statue LSA-R S 24 515 requires the Town to maintain a comprehensive listing of 
capital assets 

Cause 

There was a low priority placed on the capital assets listing 

Effect 

The Town was in violation of state law and had inadequate internal control ovei safeguarding of capital 
assets 

Recommendation 

Management of the Town should consider appointing an employee as property manager who will 
maintam a comprehensive listing of capital assets as additions and deletions are added during the year 
Department heads should be given addition and deletion fornis and required to complete the forms as 
purchases or deletions of capital assets are made and then given to the property manager. Deletions 
should be supported by written documentation stating the reason for deletion, method of disposition such 
as sale, donation or junked and appropriate evidence of approval for the action taken All should be 
approved by the Mayor and presented to the Aldermen The property manager should perfonn an annual 
physical inventoi'y of all capital assets and any missing assets identified should be investigated All assets 
should be tagged as property of the Town and serial numbers retained by the property manager Property 
manager should also maintain recoids for all construction projects to determine the status of each project 
and which projects have been completed and should be added to the capital asset living 

Response 

The administration created a capital assets list last year The external CPA was mstiumental in assisting 
the Town with its creation of a capital asset policy which has been adopted by Council 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

FOI the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2011- 06 Noncompliance with Local Government Budget Act 

Condition 

Management failed to adopt the Town's 2010-2011 General Fund budget before the start of the current 
fiscal year as required by state law (Local Government Budget Act) R S 39 1309 A and R S 33 406 A 
(3) requires the budget to be adopted by ordinance before July 1, 2010, the beginning of the Town's fiscal 
year under audit 

Cnteria 

The Local Government Budget Act requires that the chief executive officer or equivalent notify in writing 
the governing authority dunng the year when actual revenues (expenditures) and othei financing sources 
(uses) plus projected revenues (expenditures) and other financing souices (uses) for the year exceeded 
budgeted revenues (expenditures) and other financing sources (uses) by 5% or more 

Cause 

There was no budget policy and procedure in effect at June 30, 2011 The budget policy was not 
completed and adopted until December 29, 2011 

Effect 

The Town is in violation of the Local Government Budget Act 

Recommendation 

Management should strictly comply with all provisions of the Local Government Budget Act The 
town's annual budget should be adopted by ordinance before the beginning of each fiscal year (July I) 
and the budget should contain all required information All amendments to the budget are also required to 
be adopted by ordinance (R.S 33 406 A 3) 

Response 

We are aware that compliance with certain aspects of the Louisiana Budget law requires collaboration 
between the Mayor and Council While the Mayor did meet the timeline requirement, which involved 
creating and submitting the budget for adoption, the Council's refusal to adopt withm the timeline 
prescribed did constitute a violation of the Budget Act When recommendation and adoption do not occur 
within the lav/ftil timelines as prescribed, this violation is inevitable Since then, we have attempted to 
begin the process earlier, when possible, so as to allow for more deliberation time when needed so as to 
avoid future violations in this area 

2011- 07 Noncompliance with Pnblic Bid Law 

Condition 

During the time period undei audit it was revealed that the Town purchased its gasoline from one vendor 
without obtaining competitive bids as required by law 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

On August 26, 2010 the town sold and swapped real estate without a propei appraisal or board approval 
which was rescinded July 1, 2011 The transaction was modified and re-executed howevei the bid 
specifications were not corrected and the bid piocess was not properly repeated 

Criteria 

R.S 38 2212 1 requires the Town to solicit competitive bids foi all purchases of materials and supplies 
exceeding $30,000 The Louisiana Attorney General has opined (AG Opinion 02-122) that recurnng 
purchases that exceed the bid limit must be advertised and let by public bid 

Cause 

Bid law not followed 

Effect 

The cost to the Town for gasoline and diesel fuel may not be obtained at the lowest available price 
The land transaction correcting procedures did not follow public bid law 

Recommendation 

Management should consult with the Town's legal advisor and the Louisiana Attorney General Also, 
management should review annually all items purchased frequently and consider soliciting bids for such 
items to ensure the lowest possible prices and to ensure compliance with the bid law Subsequent to the 
end of the audited fiscal year, the Town consulted with the town attorney, advertised, received and 
accepted the lowest bid for gasoline and diesel fuel 

Response 

The Town was concerned about public bid law compliance with reference to how it had purchased 
gasoline over the last 20 years, and decided to request an opinion from the Office of the Attorney General 
We concluded that while the initial purchase would not reach the bid law's threshold, the subsequent 
purchases could Therefore, we put the matter our for bid to insure that we are currently in compliance 
and to set a new trend for all future purchases where these factors may be present 

Re Land Deal- The Mayor and the Town Council of the previous administiation erred in their effort to 
sell a tract of land owned by The Town The land was declared surplus and put up for public bid The 
Town acquired two separate appraisals m effort to ensure that the land was properly appraised and a fair 
market value would be realized 

However, due to the fact that the Council did not agree to sell to the sole bidder, the total land tract 
originally requested seemed to be the source of the calculation confusion The Town's attorney presented 
to the Council a sale price which was not representative of the coirect sale amount based on the actual 
amount of land being sold at the correct appraised amount 

The Town was very pleased to find that after the Legislative Auditoi's and Sheiiff s investigations that 
there was no indication of intent of wrong doing The Mayor and New Council were able to re-start the 
bid process, coirect old eriors, and with the assistance of the Town Attorney the Town sold the land 
according to the LA Public Bid Law rules and regulations 



Town of Jonesboio 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2011-08 No Clear Accounting of Dedicated Taxes 

Condition 

The Town received ad valorem (propeity) taxes dedicated foi fire protection and streets and also received 
a sales tax dedicated for streets, however, there was no cleai accounting of the expenditures of these 
monies to ensure they were spent for their dedicated purposes 

Cntcria 

R S 39 704 states, "The proceeds of any special tax shall constitute a trust fund to be used exclusively for 
the objects and purposes for which the tax was levied The records of the taxing authority shall clearly 
reflect the objects and purposes for which the proceeds of the tax are used The dedicated ad valorem 
taxes and sales taxes are deposited into separate bank accounts and the Town records the tax proceeds in 
individual funds (Street Sales Tax Fund, Street Ad Valorem Tax Fund, Fiie Ad Valorem Tax Fund) m the 
general ledger 

Cause 

The majority of the funds collected in these special revenue funds were transferred to the General Fund 
where the amounts dedicated to streets could not be verified as to their use 

Effect 

The intended purpose for the use of certain dedicated tax revenues may have been circumvented and used 
for other purposes 

Recommendation 

Management must be able to clearly demonstrate in the accounting records that the taxes were spent only 
for their dedicated purposes It is recommended that the funds and expenditures be matched appropriately 
and m a method, in the general ledger, conducive to monitoring their use 

Response 

While we are relatively certain that no dedicated funds were ever used for any non-piescribed purposed, 
with the assistance of the external CPA wc have been able to create a better system whereby the 
likelihood of comingling of dedicated and non-dedicated funds are greatly reduced 

2011-09 Written Policies and Procedures Not Complete 

Condition 

The Town's written policies and procedures for its business/financial operations were not complete 
Subsequent to year end numerous policies and procedures were being approved and placed into effect 
however, more areas should be addressed 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

FOI the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Criteria 

Wntten policies and procedures aid in the continuity of Town operations, good internal control and are 
necessaiy to provide a clear understanding of what should be done, how it should be done, who should do 
It, and when it should be done In addition, wiitten policies and procedures aid in cross-training staff or 
training new staff 

Cause 

A lack of knowledge of good accounting practices 

Effect 

Inconsistent methods of accounting contributing to enors and inaccurate financial infoimation 

Recommendation 

Management should require the town clerk to initiate and oversee the development and implementation of 
written policies and/or procedures, in accordance with applicable Louisiana laws, related to the following 
key areas 

• Ethics, including matters such as prohibited activities (e g, related party transactions) and 
requinng that an annual certification letter be signed by the aldennan and all employees attesting 
to their compliance with the ethics policy 

• Financial reporting process, including the nature, extent, and frequency of reporting financial 
information to aldennen 

• Disastei planning and recovery policies and procedures 
• Hazard mitigation plan 
• Policy regarding deficit spending 

All policies being developed should be completed, approved and placed into effect immediately and 
monitored and modified as necessary to assure accurate and consistent application The website of the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor should be consulted for sample policies and procedures and to aid in 
implementing necessary procedures to comply with state guidelines and laws Once in place, the policies 
and procedures should be continually monitored foi adherence 

Response 

Completing and adopting more written policies and procedures are at the top of the Town's list of 
prioiities The external CPA has been very helpful in this regard The Town Clerk and the firm have 
worked diligently m this area and that we understand the wntten policies will ultimately enhance our 
mternal controls The implementations of these policies took place after this audit period Therefore, the 
benefits and improvements will not be noted until the next audit phase 
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Town of Jonesboro 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2011-10 Tickets 

Condition 

Each pre-numbered ticket book is assigned to an officei and returned when all tickets have been issued 
The tickets are taken to the town hall to be tracked and the fines collected Once taken to the town hall 
they are signed over to the clerk of court by the police department administrative assistant and signed as 
received by the clerk of court The police department has improved significantly its tracking of the tickets 
out of their department 

Controls over tickets breaks down once delivered to town hall The tickets (two copics-blue and white) 
are stored m a folder m the month they are delivered to the town hall This procedure provides little 
control or tracking of whether or not the ticket has been paid following delivery to the town hall As the 
actual collections are taken, a handwntten "receipt" is prepared on a sheet of paper that is not numbered 
and, at times may be only a torn sheet of paper which has not control copy and is not traceable This 
provides an increased opportunity for misappiopriation of funds This condition indicates a complete 
absence of internal control and accountability over tickets and fines 

There is no evidence of review of the activity of collection of fines and there is not corresponding 
reporting from the clerk of court to the police department in a standardized, recurring format The police 
department is not aware of the activity regarding the tickets after delivery to the town hall and this process 
makes it virtually impossible to trace the ticket through to the point of collection or further action taken 

Critena 

Internal controls should be m place to adequately account foi traffic tickets issued and collected During 
our audit, we noted that procedures which were originally m place over traffic ticket activity were not 
being followed Traffic ticket collections were not being reconciled to the daily work and general ledger 
on a monthly basis 

Caus^ 

Inadequate accounting practices and the Town's staff lack of knowledge in basic accounting practices and 
internal control 

Lack of controls was in place to adequately account for traffic tickets being collected by the Town There 
was a risk that theft or misappropriation of funds may occui The Town may not receive payments for 
fines and the penalty purpose of tickets not properly enforced may encourage disobedience to the Town's 
traffic ordinances 

Recommendation 

We would recommend that management implement the following practices 

• Secure a receipt book that has pre-numbered receipts in tnpiicate One copy of the receipt should 
be given to the citizen paying the ticket File a copy away with the paid ticket and maintain a 
copy m the receipt book foi future reference and internal control 
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• File one copy of the ticket (blue copy) away m the month in which it was received by the clerk 
responsible and file the second copy (white copy) by number in a holding file until the ticket is 
paid 

• When the ticket is paid, pull the white copy and attach to the paid receipt and then file the paid 
ticket away in a file exclusively for traffic fines and tickets 

• The Clerk at the town hall should provide the Police Department with a monthly report of paid 
and unpaid traffic fines and tickets For good internal control, all ticket books returned to the 
town hall should have each ticket accounted for sequentially in the monthly report provided to the 
police chief Unpaid fines should be pursued timely according to the Town ordinance 

Response 

The external CPA firm assisted the Town Clerk and Court Clerk in creating a checks and balance system 
that should rectify each of the auditor's concerns This new system was not implemented until after this 
audit period Therefore, the benefits will not be recoided until the next audit phase 

2011-11 Water Sewer Collections 

Condition 

During our audit, we noted that procedures which were originally in place over water and sewer activity 
were not being followed Water and sewer accounts receivable, including billing adjustments, and 
customer deposit collections were not being reconciled to the daily work and general ledger on a monthly 
basis 

Criteria 

Internal controls should be in place to adequately account for water and sewer accounts receivable and 
customer deposit collections 

Cause 

During the year, the Town had turnover in personnel and these reconciliation procedures were not re­
assigned to other personnel A lack of management oversight failed to address this deficiency 

Effect 

A Lack of contiols was in place to adequately account for accounts receivable and customer deposits 
being collected by the Town The potential for uncollected and unrecoided revenue is increased as well 
as possible theft or misappropriation of the Town's assets 

Recommendation 

We recommend that the Town have the appropriate employee reconcile the water and sewer accounts 
receivable and customer deposits recorded in the general ledger with repoits generated by the billing 
software Also, the daily work generated by the billing software should be reconciled to the actual 
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deposits made by the appropriate Town employee The journal entry mto the accounting software should 
be made by the accountant and reviewed by the town clerk and documented with hei approval 

Response 

The Town Clerk, with the assistance of the external CPA were able to mdentify the areas of weakness 
which centered around daily, timely deposits and monthly reconciliations The new system and its 
modifications were not implemented until after this audit period Therefore, the benefits will not be 
recorded until the next audit phase 

2011-12 Interagency Accounts 

Condition' 

The Town's mtei-fund activity accounts were not reconciled and posted properly during the year 

Criteria 

Internal controls should be in place to properly account for inter-fund activity and transfers made between 
the various funds of the Town 

Cause_ 

The Town was not consistent m how it recorded tiansfers and inter-fund activity during the year A lack 
of knowledgeable personnel to review the activity failed to obseive and address the errors timely 

Effect 

Significant audit entries were required to correct inter-fund activity in the general ledger Failure to 
accurately record, review and monitor transfers can result in many types of eriors including 
misapplication of dedicated tax revenues to misappropriation of funds and loss of town assets 

Recommendation 

We recommend that inter-fund activity and transfers between funds be posted consistently "Transfers" in 
lieu of "Due to and Due From" These transactions will be reconciled on a monthly basis, reviewed and 
approved at the supervisoiy level and be made only after authorization for the transfei is made by the 
Mayor and board of Aldermen if required 

Response 

The lack of accounting expertise has been identified as the source of the problem with reference to inter­
agency accounts With the Legislative Auditor's recommendation and the assistance of the external CPA, 
we have been able to address and rectify the problem of proper bank reconciliations and posting The 
implementation of the new system and the hiring of new personnel have eliminated the problem 
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2011-13 Inauguration Celebration 

Condition* 

On December 23, 2010 the Town hosted an inaugural ceremony at the Jackson Parish Community Center 
to celebrate the 2010 campaign victones of the Mayor, Chief of Police, and Board of Aldermen The 
Town paid $2,400 00 for catered meals, $158 00 for an advertisement m the town journal, and also hired a 
videographer As Town (public) funds were used to pay for this event, the Mayor may have violated 
Louisiana Law and the Constitution. 

Critena 

The Attorney General provides guidance with regard to the Louisiana Constitution in Opinion 09-0018, 
which states that "the public entity must have the legal authority to make the expenditure" 

Cause 

According to Mayor Thompson, the event was organized without board approval as he felt it was a 
legitimate marketing expenditure to promote the town 

Effect 

Given the Attorney General's opinion and failure to meet the test for the expenditure of public funds, the 
Mayor could not explain the public purpose or benefit received by the Town for the $2,558 00 m 
expenditures associated with the inaugural ceremony thereby exliibiting an improper use of public funds 

Recommendation 

Seek guidance from an authority such as the Louisiana Legislative Auditoi when considenng an 
expenditure or event that is out of the normal course of business for the Town 

Response' 

The Mayor maintains that there is a significant difference in the definition of 'celebration' and 
*ceremony' This function was a Town ceremony where all Town elected officials were notified to be 
sworn m to office, and all of the public were invited to attend The occasion gave opportunity to market 
the accomplishments and progress of the Town The videographer was hired to display these 
accomplishments by slide show The council was not notified for approval due to the Council having 
adopted a budget whereby funding was available foi a marketing activity such as this However, in an 
effort to avoid any furthei appearance of mishandling of public funds, all related matters are now being 
presented to Council and, a written request to the Attorney General foi an opinion will be requested, if 
necessary 
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2011-14 Timely Filing of Repoi t 

Condition 

The report was not submitted to the legislative auditor's office on a timely basis 

Criteria 

LSA-R S 24 513 States that, "all engagements must be completed and transmitted to the legislative 
auditor within six months of the close of the auditee fiscal year" 

Effect. 

The Town was not in compliance with the State Law governing audit engagement completion 

Recommendation 

The Town should remain in compliance with the State Law governing audit engagement completion The 
audit engagement should be sought through the methods prescnbed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
A firm should be selected and approval of the Louisiana Legislative Auditor sought early enough to allow 
the audit to begin as soon after the close of the fiscal year as is practicable 

Response 

The town is very committed to the compliance of all state laws Our inability to comply with audit 
timeliness was due to extenuating circumstances Due to our problems with the previous two years of 
audits, the Town entered into a three-prong contract with the Legislative Auditor, the CPA (acting as 
Chief Financial Officer), and the Town While this was a effort to strengthen the Town's areas of 
weaknesses, it was also recommended by the Legislative Auditor that we not begin the 2010-2011 
financial year audit until we all felt that we had a viable product to audit Therefore, we found it 
impossible to complete the audit within the time frame permitted by law, due to having begun the process 
late This should not be a repeat offense 

C, Findings and Questions Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit 

Findings and questioned costs for federal awards which are required to be reported under OMB 
Circular A-133 Section (a): 

2011-15 Capital Outlay Accounting 

Condition 

The Town did not maintain capital outlay project files to track construction in progress In examining two 
grants it was noted that non capital expenditures were recorded in capital outlay accounts and capital 
outlay expenditures were posted in repair accounts Projects were not appropriately segregated to enable 
piopei monitoring of receipt and expenditures of funds 
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Also dunng the examination of grants and contiacts, no vendor invoices oi support for one vendor could 
be provided and many lacked wntten indication of review and approval foi payment Additionally, 
payments were consistently made late and one instance the full balance due was paid, which exceeded the 
invoiced amount by more than $75,000 While not a direct violation it is not considered appropriate in 
light of the cash flow difficulties of the town Numerous invoices were lacking notation of being paid, in 
one noted instance an invoice was paid twice This was caught 3 months latei by the town and a veibal 
request for a refund was made As of the date of this report the refund has not been received, seven 
months after the request was made and there was no evidence of subsequent requests. Due to a lack of 
adequate documentation it is possible that, due to poor accounting records maintenance that it was, in fact 
not paid twice 

The Town did not comply with requirements regarding cash management that are applicable to the airport 
improvements program, CFDA# 20 106 and the Capitalization Grant for Clean Water, CFDA# 66 458, 
compliance with such requirements is necessary in our opinion for the Town to comply with the 
requirements applicable to that program 

Critena, 

Proper accounting for capital outlay expenditures requires that only expenditures for capitalizable items 
be charged to capital outlay general ledger accounts An analysis of construction in progress should be 
maintained for each project 

Cause. 

A lack of knowledge of requirements for recording capital outlay projects on the part of the accounting 
staff and apparently no year- end review of the capital outlay accounts was performed 

Effect 

The possibility that capitalizable expenditures were recorded as expense and some expenses should have 
been capitalized An increased possibility that the accounting records of the Town would not be in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting pnnciples (GAAP) 

Recommendation 

The Town should maintain construction in progress files and monitor the activity monthly Capital outlay 
accounts should be reviewed monthly and at year end to ensure that only allowable and appropriate 
expenses are posted to those accounts When a project is completed the costs should be moved to the 
proper capital asset account 

Centralized control of contiacts and giants should be implemented and maintained by the town clerk The 
town accountant should maintain a log of journal entries and receive wntten review and approval by the 
town clerk and others as deemed necessaiy Bank reconciliations should be prepared by the town 
accountant and reviewed by the town clerk noting review and approval All expenditures should be 
reviewed and contain wntten evidence of the review and approval by the mayoi as well as all supporting 
invoices and documents piioi to payment As required, certain expenditures require consideration and 
approval of the aldermen 
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Grants and loans should have compliance matters listed foi restrictions and covenants and be monitored 
for continued compliance Funds should be propeily segregated as required by grants, loan covenants and 
law such as taxes dedicated to a specific purpose 

Lack of a proper accounting for giants made the preparation of the Schedule of Federal Awards difficult 
to determme and to ascertain the completeness Monitonng and managing the day to day progress of the 
town IS cntical in the management of cash fiow to prevent future economic hardships 

Response 

The Town has created a Capital Outlay oversight component compartment, and has assigned the 
responsibility of record keeping with the accountant and deputy clerk Their continued efforts to seek 
advice and instruction from outside professionals of the field should result in better organization and more 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as they relate to capital outlay, grants and loans 
m our next audit cycle 

2011- 16 Suspension and Debarment 

Condition 

Management entered into contracts for goods and services exceeding the $25,000 covered transaction 
threshold without documenting then verification that the vendoi was not suspended, debarred or 
otherwise excluded it was determined m the audit that no tested vendor was suspended, debarred or 
otherwise excluded 

Federal Aviation Administration Airport 20 106 
Improvement Program 

Environmental Protection Agency Passed 66 458 
Through LA Department of Environmental 
Quality Capitalization Grants for Clean 
Water (ARRA) 

Ciitena 

Federal regulation 2CFR Part 180 requires that an entity receiving federal funds must verify that the entity 
m which it expects to spend $25,000 or more for goods and sei-vices is not suspended oi debaiied oi 
otherwise excluded fiom receiving federal funds 

Cause 

Management has no internal control developed to verify with the EPLS, Excluded Parties Listing System, 
those entities to which they expect to pay $25,000 oi more foi goods and services Sole reliance is placed 
upon the Town's engineenng firm to deteimine compliance 
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Effect 

Management did not verify entities it expected to pay $25,000 or more for goods and services with the 
EPLS, Excluded Parties Listing System 

Recommendation 

Management should develop internal contiol piocedures to veiify with the EPLS, Excluded Parties 
Listing System, those entities to which they expect to pay $25,000 or more for goods and services 

Response 

The Town Clerk has implemented a system with the assistance of the outside CPA firm whereby websites 
are now visited to insure that the vendors we do business with are in good standing While sole reliance 
on our engineer in this area has served us well to date, we now consider this to be an m-house 
responsibility 
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2010-01 General Accounting 

Condition 

The Town uses a general ledger program and a program for ad valorem taxes billing. A third party 
does the utility billing for the Town Currently the Town has no wntten policy for information 
systems and only has procedures for limiting access to the payroll data 

There were several issues noted with cash Checks were not issued m check number order and there 
IS no accounting for the sequence of check numbeis There are two senes of manual checks, foi 
which there are no controls to ensure that all manual checks are recorded Bank reconciliations are 
not reconciled back to the general ledger There were numerous checks and deposits found that were 
never recorded or were recorded in the wrong cash account The checks for the LCDBG account 
were never recorded and the deposits were recorded m the contiol account instead of the LCDBG 
account Also the town did not have bank statements for the account 

The bank reconciliation for the control account included outstanding checks which were actually 
wntten from other accounts and had cleared the other bank accounts and outstanding checks which 
actually cleared the control account during the fiscal year and should not have been outstanding on 
the bank reconciliation There were two deposits m transit that cleared the account during the year 
and should not have been deposits in transit There were also outstanding checks dating back to 1995 
and several outstanding checks that are negative checks 

An entry was recorded by the Town to the control account to record numerous deposits, manual 
checks and charge backs even though most of the activity flowed through other accounts This entry 
was made in June 2010 by the Town and had to be corrected by audit adjustment 

The payroll account reconciliation lists outstanding deposits that cleared the bank during the year 
There are outstanding checks dating back to 2001 The reconciliation should agree with the payroll 
clearing cash account in Fund 20, but there is a material difference 

There were five cash accounts that had not activity recorded thioughout the year even though there 
was activity in the bank accounts 

There were poor internal controls over cash deposits Forty police fines, forty six ad valorem receipts 
and foui days of water receipts were tested and every transaction tested were deposited late Most 
deposits throughout the year were made 5 days late to over a week late Li addition, there were 
numerous days where daily cash collections were over or short with no reconciliations of the 
differences There is not piocedurc in place to reconcile police fines collected to mfonnation from 
the Cleik of Court 

Petty cash transactions are not posted to the general ledger The balance of petty cash on the general 
ledger does not agree to the total of cash and receipts I the petfy cash drawei 

The Town could not provide a listing of grants received foi the current year including the infoimation 
needed for the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
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Adequate and accurate financial statements were not being piovided to the Town Council. The 
council only receives accounts payable check registers, which does not present all transactions posted 
to the general ledger 

Supporting documentation was not available for manual journal entnes other that routine monthly 
cash receipts 

Auditors were provided listings for accounts receivables and accounts payable, but matenal payables 
and receivables still had to be recorded by audit adjustment Foi utility customeis, no entnes are 
made to accounts receivables during the year An audit adjustment is made at year end to record the 
June billings and to record the unbilled receivables There was not attempt to record balances due on 
delinquent accounts An audit adjustment was made to reverse the payables and receivables from the 
prior year 

From review of documentation from the IRS it appeals that the payroll liabilities for the year were 
paid, but were not all posted to the general ledger Due to unrecorded transactions and lack of 
documentation any outstanding payroll liability is unable to be determined 

There are not standard procedures for settling up of travel advances to employees 

The general ledger balances for the three inventory accounts did not agree with the physical counts 
performed 

Recommendation 

Procedures and job descriptions must be established for maintenance of accounting records These 
procedures should include monthly reconciliations of bank accounts to the general ledger and 
accounts receivable sub ledger Procedures should also include contiols over the cashier functions 
and daily reconciliations of cash collected to the general ledger and accounts receivable sub ledger 
Procedures should also include contiols over the cashier functions and daily reconciliations of cash 
collected to the general ledger recording and investigations of any over or short amounts Procedures 
should be established to ensure that bills are paid on time Additional training should be provided to 
the accounting staff and a third party CPA should be contacted to assist with each monthly close out 
until the staff are adequately trained Accounting duties should be further segregated and proper 
appioval steps implemented A clear chain of command should be established 

Current Status 

Partially Resolved See current year finding 2011 -01 

2010-02 Utility Collections/Public Works 

Condition 

While testing 4 days of utility cash receipts (495 individual payments) in the Water and Sewer Utility 
Fund, It was noted that deposits for all four days were not made timely There were 2 exceptions 
where the amount was not properly posted to the customer's account There were 7 exceptions where 
the customer was not disconnected after the cutoff date 
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Recommendation 

The Town should ensure that all cash receipts are deposited in a timely manner (within three banking 
days) There should greater internal control over cash receipts There should be a reconciliation of 
receipts to the actual deposits of all payments perfoimed by an employee independent of the 
collection, posting or bank deposit functions 

The cut-off policy should be followed on all customers An adjustment form should be prepared 
stating the reason for the adjustment, the amount and a proper official should sign as approving the 
adjustment 

Current Status 

Partially resolved See current year finding 2011-11 

2010-03 Internal Control Over Disbursements 

Condition 

The following exceptions were noted from a test of vendor disbursements 

From a random sample of 177 checks (120 General Fund, 57 Water & Sewer) the following was 
noted: 

• No documentation was provided for one check 
• Purchase orders for two of the checks could not be provided 
• Three of the checks were paid more than 30 days after the invoice date 

Also, 14 giant checks were selected for testing and eight of these checks were not recorded in the 
general ledger 

The following exceptions were noted from a test of 50 payroll disbursements 

• One instance of the payment not being from a computer generated checks and was not 
recorded m the general ledger 

• Seven instances where the personnel file was missing proof of existence documentation (1-9, 
social security, driver's license, etc) 

• Forty five instances where time records were not signed by the employee or the supei-visor 
• Eight instances where time recoids were not available 
• Nine instances where the pay rate was incorrectly computed or the rate could not be 

computed 
• There are not salary schedules to support pay rates The latest salai'y schedule that could be 

located was from 2005 

The following exceptions were noted in testing of foui credit caid accounts 

• The entire year was tested for one of the credit cards and the November 2009, Decembei 
2009 and February 2010 statements and receipts could not be located 
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Recommendation 

All vendor payments m the future should include original documentation (invoices, etc) and should 
be paid timely Records supporting disbursements should be properly maintained All employees 
should have a completed 1-9 form The town should establish and maintain a salary schedule There 
should be a foim for employee evaluations and raises and should be maintained in the employees' 
files All salary increases should have the proper approval on the form Time cards/ or pay sheets 
should be signed by the employee and the supervisor All overtime should be authonzed by the 
appropriate official 

Current Status 

Unresolved See current year finding 2011-02 

2010-04 Capital Asset mnnagement 

Condition 

The Town does not have procedures in place where an employee maintains a complete listing of the 
Town's capital assets nor do they have procedures to ensure all additions and deletions are properly 
reflected and monitored Auditors had to compile a listing for additions to capital assets due to the 
town not having any records for capital assets There was no annual physical inventory taken as 
required for good internal controls not are all assets properly tagged Records for construction in 
progress were not maintained for the year The Town could not complete a listing of construction 
projects they had, which ones were completed at 06/30/10 or how much was paid or owed on each 
project There were flies for the numerous projects, but there were several invoices missing from the 
files and nobody tracked the progress of any of the projects Auditors had to complete the schedule 
for construction m progress and determme which construction projects the Town had. 

Recommendation 

Management of the Town should consider appointing and employee as property manager who will 
maintain a comprehensive listing of capital assets as additions and deletions are added dunng the 
year Department heads should be given addition and deletion foims and required to complete the 
forms as purchases or deletions of capital assets are made and then given to the property manager 
The property manager should perform and annual physical inventory of all capital assets and any 
missing assets identified should be investigated All assets should be tagged as property of the Town 
and senal numbers retained by the property manager Property manager should also maintain recoids 
for all construction projects to determine the status of each project and which projects have been 
completed and should be added to the capital asset listing 

Current Status 

Unresolved See current year findings 2011 -05 
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2010-05 Late Submission of Audit Rcpoit to Legislative Auditor 

Condition 

The Town did not have the audit completed and submitted to the Legislative Auditor by the six month 
deadline of December 31, 2010 The Town was originally granted an extension to March 31, 2011, 
but that extension was revoked by the state 

Recommendation 

The Town should strive to have all bank reconciliations performed and the fmancials balanced and 
completed in a timely manner in order for the submission of their audit report each year I order to 
comply with requirements with the Legislative Auditor's Office and other agencies 

Current Status 

Unresolved See current year finding 2011-14 

2010-06 Auditing of Third Party Collections 

Condition 

In testing of four months of collections it was found that the Town was not making timely deposits, 
therefore when APS would draw the collections from the bank account, the account would go to a 
negative balance The Town was in turn being charged NSF fees In January of 2010 there was a 
vanance between the deposited amount and the daily report of the actual collections This vanance 
was due to an employee making a deposit of their own personal funds to bring the account out of a 
negative balance and to stop the NSF fees Once this deposit was made the bank balance did not to 
zero from being negative There were two other deposits noted m December 2009 and June 2010 that 
caused a variance between the deposits and the daily report There belonged to other accounts, but 
were never transferred out to the proper accounts There was also a deposit noted that was made m 
July 2010 just after year end that was made from an employee's personal fund 

A cash count of the APS drawers was performed while on location The APS system was down and 
there were not collections for the day so each drawei should have only the $150 start up money One 
of the drawers had more that the $150 because the drawers had last been used 14 days earlier and had 
not been counted down until the cash count was perfonned 

Recommendation 

Collections from each day should be deposited daily to avoid the Town being charged NSF fees by 
the bank 

Ciirrent Status 

Resolved. Town no longer provides third party collection 
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2010-07 Local Government Budget Act 

Condition 

The budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 was adopted on December 2, 2009 The budget 
was not amended even though expenditure for the general fund exceeded the budget by more than 
5% 

Recommendation 

The laws regarding the budget should be followed in the future 

Current Status 

Unresolved See cuirent year finding 2011-06 

2010- 08 Internal Control Over Disbursements 

Condition 

Several disbursements were not recorded m the general ledger 

Recommendation 

All transactions should be recorded in the general ledger Review of the geneial ledger should be 
performed to ensure that all activity has been recorded The normal accounts payable procedures 
should be used to help ensure that disbursements are recorded in the general ledger If manual checks 
are wntten, they should be posted to the general ledger immediately to help ensure all activity is 
recorded 

Current Status 

Unresolved See current years finding 2011- 02 

2010- 09 Cash Management 

Condition 

For the Airport Improvement program, there were eight disbursements tested and six were not 
expended m a timely manner For the LCDBG, there were four reimbursements tested out of eight 
that were done for the year. One of the four tested was not expended timely 

Recommendation 

Capital outlay accounts should be reviewed at year end to ensure that only allowable and appropriate 
expenses are posted An analysis of construction in progress should be maintained on a monthly 
basis When the project is complete the cost should be moved to the proper capital asset account 
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Current Status 

Unresolved See current finding 2011-01 

2010- 10 Capital Outlay Accounting 

Condition 

In testing the two grants it was found that numerous transaction were recorded to capital outlay that 
should not have been There were several repairs and maintenance expenses recorded as capital 
outlay Jn addition there were transactions for capital outlay that were never recoided and had to be 
recorded by the auditors A schedule of constiuction in pi ogress was not maintained by the Town 

Recommendation 

Capital outlay accounts should be reviewed at year end to ensure that only allowable and appropriate 
expenses are posted An analysis of construction m progress should be maintained on a monthly 
basis When the project is complete the costs should be moved to the proper capital asset account 

Cunent Status 

Unresolved See current year finding 2011-15 

2010- 11 Procurement Suspension and Debarment 

Condition 

When testing the procurement, suspension and debarment compliance requirement, it was noted that 
the Town does not have procedures in place to verify that the vendors they are purchasing from are 
not suspended or debarred 

Recommendation 

The Town should establish internal controls and procedures to ensure that vendors with which they 
make purchases are not suspended or debarred Verification checks should be performed by 
accessing the EPLS website to ascertain if each vendor is eithei suspended or debaired and the 
verifications printed and kept 

Current Status 

Unresolved See current year finding 2011-16 
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